
City of Swartz Creek 
AGENDA 

Regular Council Meeting, Monday, September 22, 2014, 7:00 P.M. 
City Hall Building, 8083 Civic Drive Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 

1. CALL TO ORDER:

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

3. ROLL CALL:

4. MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES:
4A. Council Meeting of August 25, 2014 MOTION Pg. 22 

5. APPROVE AGENDA:
5A. Proposed / Amended Agenda MOTION Pg. 1 

6. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS:
6A. City Manager’s Report (Agenda Item) MOTION Pg. 2 
6B. Water & Sewer Rate Changes-Data Sheet (Agenda Item) Pg. 28 
6C. Miller Road Lot Purchase Proposal (Agenda Item) Pg. 34 
6D. MDOT Contract (Agenda Item)  Pg. 47 
6E. August DPS Report Pg. 82 
6F. August Check Register  Pg. 88 
6G. August Police Report  Pg. 93 
6H. August Building Report  Pg. 94 
6I. Draft Park Rules Pg. 103 
6J. Recreation Passport Grant Proposal (Agenda Item) Pg. 112 
6K. FANG Report  Pg. 116 

7. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:
7A. General Public Comments

8. COUNCIL BUSINESS:
8A. MDOT Contract for Park & Ride RESO Pg. 10
8B. RESO Pg. 11
8C. RESO Pg. 12
8D. RESO Pg. 20
8E. RESO Pg. 20
8F.

Miller Road Lot Sale
City Rates & Fees (Utilities)  
Recreation Passport Grant Proposal 
DDA Budget Amendment 
Closed Session (Personnel Matter & Real Estate Purchase) 

9. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:

10. REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS:

11. ADJOURNMENT: MOTION 

City Council Packet 1 September 22, 2014



 
City of Swartz Creek 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
Regular Council Meeting of Monday, September 22, 2014 - 7:00 P.M. 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members 
FROM: Adam Zettel, City Manager 
DATE:   August 25, 2014 
 

OLD / ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS 
 
 GOLF COURSE TAX APPEAL (No Change of Status) 

There has been a communication from the owner’s representative. At this time, the 
appeal is recorded as being filed by the previous owner and the new owner as a co-
petitioner. However, there may be some confusion regarding the co-petitioners’ 
approach to the appeal action. I am working with the new owner’s representative to 
see how they want to proceed. 
 

 RACEWAY TAX APPEAL (No Change of Status) 
Here is another one. The harness racing industry is struggling, but they still have 108.5 
acres at a signalized intersection with I-69. Their appeal information is as follows: 
 
2014 Taxable:   $904,200  
2014 Taxable (requested): $250,000 
 
If the city agrees that non-residential land on Morrish Road off of I-69 is valued at less 
than $4,700 per acre, assuming the improvements had no value, then we have very 
large problems indeed. (Note that we would assume no such thing in any case). 
 
Like the golf course, this property keeps appealing. I believe such businesses will do 
so, beyond absurdity, until it is clear the city is resisting.  

 
 DOWNTOWN PARKING LOTS (Update) 

The scrap tire grant work is completed, and we are looking to close out the grant with 
the state by September 30th for a full accounting of the project. The CDBG portion of 
the work, which was approved at the last city council meeting, is expected to start 
soon and be completed in October.  

 
 MAJOR STREET FUND, TRAFFIC IMPROVEMENTS (See Individual Category) 

 
 MILLER ROAD RESURFACING PROJECT (No Change of Status) 

OHM is moving forward with designs for Miller Road in accordance with the council 
resolution. We will not hear much more about this project until bids are released in 
March. 

 
 WATER – SEWER ISSUES PENDING (See Individual Category) 
 SEWER REHABILITATION PROGRAM (No Change of Status) 

Liqui Force has substantially completed the re-lining work in the village. I will meet 
with Tom upon my return to debrief on the work completed and established a 

City Council Packet 2 September 22, 2014



timeline to review the next round of sewer line inspection work that was also 
performed.  
 

 BEAR CREEK SANITARY SEWER AGREEMENT (No Change of Status) 
GCWWS is exploring options concerning the Morrish Road sewer line that services 
Bear Creek.  I expect to hear from them by October. 
 

 KWA (No Change of Status) 
The KWA water pipeline project is currently under budget and on schedule. We 
should be online in 2016. The bad news is that the Detroit water authority is 
hammering Genesee County for the last two years of system use in terms of rates, 
as well as any potential for a system backup after the KWA is online. Rates have 
been set, and they are unpleasant. I expect to have a new rate proposal for the city 
council at the next meeting for both water and sewer so that these increases do not 
empty the fund balance for water and sewer. It is likely that we will lose money for a 
quarter or two before new rates can be implemented, but both funds should be able 
to accommodate that loss so that the burden is lessened on the system users.  
 

 STORM SEWER (No Change of Status) 
Mr. Svrcek has been working with the Michigan Department of Environmental 
Quality on some permitting issues that every city in the urban area of the county is 
dealing with. We are not thrilled with the expectations. What appears to be the 
heavy hand of the DEQ may put us out of the business of providing many basic 
services, or at least radically changing the way we do business. This could result in 
many new ordinances and expenses regulating a variety of practices including how 
we store road salt, where we can dump street sweepings, and how residents can 
discharge a pool. We will likely be addressing this in mid-summer, but we want to 
take our time due to the wide reaching effect that this could have on the community.  
 

 PERSONNEL:  POLICIES & PROCEDURES (No Change of Status) 
I have a couple templates that I am looking at with some of the supervisors. The police 
department has an extensive handbook that is updated regularly.  We expect to adopt 
a similar (but different) set of policies to cover all other employees. 

 
 CITY PROPERTY, 4438 MORRISH ROAD & 5017 THIRD STREET(Update) 

The demolition of the Morrish Road house is complete, and the Third Street house 
should be gone by the time we meet next. There are no issues or irregularities to 
report. 

 
 SHARED SERVICES, POLICE DEPARTMENTS (Update) 

I am working with Mundy Township to get a draft of a shared service agreement ready 
for review and potential execution in October. This agreement would provide 
contractual ‘Chief of Police’ services to the city, with all other functions of the 
department remaining unchanged.  
 
In essence, this would function much like the building services arrangement we have 
with Mundy or the shared service arrangement that the school has with the Clio 
district, meaning that we pay for an individual to execute the functions of the job as an 
official of our municipality, under our budget, policies, rules, and chain of command.  
 

City Council Packet 3 September 22, 2014



My expectations are that we will share the hours and compensation costs with Mundy 
on a 50/50 basis, just as the school is doing with their assistant superintendents. This 
arrangement would be temporary and cease upon the formation of a police authority or 
upon a decision by the city council to forego this arrangement and hire a new chief.  

 
 SPRINGBROOK EAST & HERITAGE – VACANT LOTS (Update) 

Following are issues pending for the three Associations: 
 

SPRINGBROOK COLONY SPRINGBROOK EAST HERITAGE VILLAGE 

No outstanding issues No outstanding issues 

Transfer water, sanitary 
sewer, storm sewer, streets to 
city and seek solution for 4 
vacant lots owned by city. 

 
The Springbrook East unit sales have been affirmed, and it is expected that the 
purchaser will begin acquiring those units. 
 
I have also been in communication with the counsel of Heritage Village. On August 
19th, the home owners association resolved to transfer described rights of ways, 
including utilities to the city. It appears that adequate surveys and language exist for 
the dedication, and there is also language included about storm drainage (collection 
system, pond system, and transmission system).  

 
 MEIJER COMMUNITY DONATION (Update) 

I am looking for a new contact at Meijer.  Perhaps a recognition of their donation, 
along with all of the other grant and façade work is appropriate in the near future. 

 
 WINCHESTER WOODS LOTS (No Change of Status) 

I suggest we delay any sales or negotiations until a land sale policy is adopted. 
Prior to the last meeting, staff notified the interested parties that a sale will not be 
forthcoming anytime soon. They do not appear to be in a hurry and will await the 
council’s decision.  
 
I want to take a harder look at the development of this area. Previously, the city 
considered an assessment that would provide drainage, curbs, gutters, road 
construction, street lights and sidewalks. The price per lot was absurd. I think the 
goal should be to make these lots buildable for quality homes. The city could 
probably achieve this with less intensive ditching and surfacing of the roads, sans 
the underground drainage system, lights, curbs, and sidewalks. This would 
drastically reduce the scope of the project.  
 
A sale of lots to an adjacent property owner could compromise the success of any 
special assessment for improvements and the ability to use these lots for single 
family homes.  
 

 NEWSLETTER (No Change of Status) 
The next is scheduled for November or late October. Topics are expected to include 
the police department updates, sidewalk maintenance for the winter months, and the 
street rehabilitation plan.  
 

 UTILITY RATES (Update) 

City Council Packet 4 September 22, 2014



I have attached the notice of increase from Genesee County Water and Waste for both 
sewer and water. The rate increases are tremendous. To be fair, it is not just the 
county. In fact, most of the increase for water is coming out of Detroit. A quick glance 
at the news will offer much information related to the regional problems with the Detroit 
system, as well as the tremendous rate increases that are forthcoming. 
 
For our part, we have recalculated our rates to catch upon on existing deficits and to 
account for the increases from the county. This will enable the city to raise rates once 
in the foreseeable future for both utilities. As one would expect, the increase is 
substantial but very much in line with similarly situated municipalizes purchasing water 
from Detroit, via Genesee County Water and Waste Services.  
 
With that said, the new rates are proposed to be: 
 

Water 
    

 
Readiness to Serve Charge $52.17 

 
Consumption (per 100 cf) $5.45 

     Sewer 
    

 
Metered Customers 

 
 

Readiness to Serve Charge/Unit $58.86 

 
Consumption (per 100 cf) $1.91 

     
 

Non-Metered Customers 
 

 

Sewer Readiness & 
Consumption/Unit $129.11 

 
This equates to a quarterly bill of $221.41 for a household using 1500 cubic feet 
(~11,250 gallons) of water/sewer each quarter. An increase of ~20%.   
 
Note that much of this increase, especially in sewer is due to the absorption of prior 
rate increases from GCWWS. For example, our current rate to sell sewer commodity 
to our retail customers is $0.088 lower then what we are paying wholesale for the 
commodity! (1.56/ccf to our customers vs. 1.658/ccf for what we pay to the county). 
With the new commodity charge being set at 1.82/ccf, we have much ground to cover, 
especially if we intend to continue with our sewer rehabilitation programs and other 
operations.   
 
The water fund was more solvent to begin with, but the rate increases from Detroit are 
nothing short of astounding. All users in Genesee County are awaiting the new water 
authority and more stable pricing. 
 

 RENTAL REGISTRATION AND INSPECTIONS (No Change of Status) 
I am working with the city attorney to pen a draft ordinance for this program. I will also 
work with Mr. Johnson to set up a tentative inspection program and fee schedule that 
the city council can then review.  
 

 WINSHALL PAVILION (Update) 

City Council Packet 5 September 22, 2014



I spoke with the representative with Belfor Construction, and they indicated that the 
south east Michigan storms put them into an emergency mode and they should have 
this job done the week of the 22nd. A purchase order and deposit has been submitted 
for the job. I have made our displeasure known to the insurance provider. 
 

 OTHER COMMUNICATIONS & HAPPENINGS (Update)  
 

 MONTHLY REPORTS (Update) 
The August police, DPS, FANG, building, and check reports are in.   

 
 BOARDS & COMMISSIONS (See Individual Category)  
 PLANNING COMMISSION (Update) 

An application has been submitted to place a medical marijuana dispensary in the 
Carriage Plaza on the west end. This is a special land use that will go before the 
planning commission on October 7th. Among other requirements, review by the city 
attorney is required and pending (note that a  new fee is proposed to cover future 
costs such as this). A notice and mailing was sent out this week for the public 
hearing. 
 
Conceptual plans have been submitted for the old Marathon site. However, there 
are some very practical concerns that require a closer look before a complete set of 
plans is ready. I expect this will push the project back to at least November for a 
planning commission review. Stay tuned. 
 

 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (Update) 
The DDA met on September 9th to amend their budget and begin planning for the 
coming year.  They are excited about the prospect of working with the private sector 
to potentially develop the city-owned property on Morrish Road, north of Fortino 
Drive.  This is something we have conceptualized for some time that the DDA may 
have the resources to realize in the next 18-24 months. 
 

 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (Update) 
A variance related to another fence application was heard on September 17th. The 
variance was approved. The vacant position (alternate) was filled by Fred Pajtas. 
 

 PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION  (Update) 
A meeting was held on September 2, 2014. The commission made a couple 
changes to the park rules (attached) and also made a recommendation concerning 
the Recreation Passport Grant. The grant is covered separately in this packet as an 
agenda item. 
 
The rules are being included at this time without the expectation for action. I 
encourage council members to look at the draft and notes. If there are questions or 
concerns, please direct them to me at the meeting or directly. I will work through 
those in the coming weeks. If it appears we have worked out most of the issues, I 
will bring these back to the city council for approval. 
 

 BOARD OF REVIEW (No Change of Status) 

City Council Packet 6 September 22, 2014



The board of review met on July 23rd. Two petitioners presented. The board also 
requested the appointment of an alternate member. The state encourages this for 
practical reasons. The first is the need to ensure the presence of at least two 
members out of the three appointees. The second is to begin training of potential 
permanent members for what is considered a specialized position.  
 
The charter limits the board to three, but the city attorney believes that alternates 
are permissible as long as the acting board is not comprised of more than three 
members at any time. With that said, staff recommends the appointment of another 
qualified board member to serve as an alternate.  

 
NEW BUSINESS / PROJECTED ISSUES & PROJECTS 
 
 MILLER ROAD OUT LOT (Proclamation) 

In July, the city received a proposal from a property owner in the city to buy a 
residential out lot that the city owns on Miller Road (a map is attached). This is a 60’ lot 
identified as 58-36-578-018. This is not a buildable lot. The city has it because there 
was a potential to use this to access the development behind it with a road connection 
or a sewer connection for a county transmission line. At this time, we have no need for 
it.  
 
In August, we send letters to the adjacent owners with frontage on Miller Road, 
soliciting final and best offers for this parcel.  We only received one proposal, which 
was a restated version of the original proposal. Based on our findings, this parcel has 
very little value to us and no discernable value to any non-adjacent land owner. As 
such, I recommend the city accept the offer and sell the parcel. We could probably do 
so by quit claim deed if we can maintain existing easements and ensure that the 
property be combined with the buyer’s lot. There is a resolution attached that enables 
me to come back with a purchase agreement and other instrument (deed) to do exactly 
that.  
 

 MILLER ROAD PARK AND RIDE (Resolution) 
This is a renewal of a straight forward contract. The state owns the park and ride, and 
the city maintains it. Each quarter, we submit an invoice for contracted services like 
snow removal and mowing, as well as our labor costs for trash removal and other 
miscellaneous maintenance. The contract also pays 10.5% overhead for administration.  
 
As you can see there are a couple blanks in the contract, but the resolution provides 
the inserts for most of these. Otherwise, the labor costs in our AFSCME union 
agreement and the fixed costs for contracted service (including the mowing bid) apply.  
The arrangement works well, and I recommend we continue.  
 

 RATES AND FEES (Resolution) 
The utility fees are covered under the old business section of this report.  
 
Since the city maintains all fees, rates, and charges on a master schedule, I have 
included that schedule as a complete resolution to update the utility rates. At this time, I 
have also included two other known charges that should be updated. 

City Council Packet 7 September 22, 2014



 
This first is the deposit fee for pavilion reservations. The park commission felt that a 
reservation was needed to increase the stewardship observed during pavilion use. A 
general disrespect for facilities and cleanup has been observed, and this is costly in 
terms of labor for our DPW.  While the occurrence of damage or other rule violations 
may not be tied directly to a park user, and therefore the deposit owner, we still feel that 
the deposit will increase the amount of attention given to pavilion use by most folks. 
This change is a result of the amended park rules that are attached and discussed in 
this packet.  
 
The second addition is for medical marijuana dispensary and growing facility review. 
The ordinance that permits these facilities indicates that such a fee can be set by the 
council, but this has never been done. In addition to the special land use fee, there is a 
legal review of operations and facilities that is required by ordinance. I estimate these 
professional services will cost about $500. 
 

 RECREATION PASSPORT GRANT (Resolution)  
The parks commission has been working hard as a volunteer group to make 
improvements to Elms Park in accordance with the city’s park plan as well as to meet 
basic maintenance needs. They have been working with the prior administration to get 
a reasonable allocation of funds (~$10,000) to make some much needed improvement 
that the volunteers cannot tackle. In lieu of an allocation in that amount, the 
commission is looking to pursue a maintenance grant available through the Michigan 
Department of Natural Resources (Recreation Passport Grant) that will contribute up 
to $40,000 for work in urban parks.  
 
Under the direction of the parks commission, staff worked with Rowe to get a proposal 
to the city council to develop a scope of work to submit to the DNR. This proposal was 
delivered to the commission on September 9th. They worked with Rowe’s 
representative to develop a tentative scope of work for a potential grant. It includes a 
total of $80,000 towards bathroom renovations, three new pavilion roofs, improvement 
paths to all pavilions, and softball/baseball field enhancements. It is also hoped that if 
this project gets the green light, other projects can be initiated and funded by other 
groups (including new play equipment, a running path, and new trees).  
 
The request at this point is for $3,800 to permit Rowe PSC to put together preliminary 
plans, costs, and a grant application for a Recreation Passport Grant. There is no 
further funding or other commitment at this time.  If the grant is ultimately awarded, it 
will require a 25-50% local match of city funds, donations, and/or volunteer hours. We 
believe community services clubs, the park commission, local businesses, and our 
dedicated group of volunteers can account for much of this match. The commission 
and staff are very excited about this proposition.  
 
If the proposal is approved, a grant would be submitted sometime before April 2015. 
Any award would not be known until fall of 2015, with construction in early 2016. This 
means that any future capital outlay would not occur until the 2016 or even 2017 fiscal 
year! 
 

City Council Packet 8 September 22, 2014



I am a strong supporter of this project. The grant is perfect for us. Instead of getting 
grant-supported new facilities that drain resources over the years, this grant allows us 
to improve what we have and save in operating costs. For a small cash match, the city 
would be able to make our facilities more accessible, more vandal resistant, and much 
nicer. If all goes well, some momentum will build, and groups may support a larger 
scale park reinvestment initiative at the same time.  
 
The existing budget for Elms Park will support this allocation without amendment. 

  
 BUDGET AMENDMENT (DDA) (Resolution) 

The Meijer tax appeal, however small, had a big impact on the Downtown Development 
Authority. This is because the DDA collects its revenues off of new tax base in the 
district, and since Meijer makes up most of it, it disproportionately impacts the DDA.  
 
The true cash value of the site is dropping form about $10.3 million to $9 million. This 
change, assuming the raceway appeal is approved by the Michigan Tax Tribunal, is 
expected to lower revenues for the DDA from $105,000 to about $73,000.  This new 
figure requires a downward adjustment in expenses for the fiscal year since the 
approved budget calls for the spending of $79,750.  
 
The DDA approved a revised budget at their meeting on September 11, 2014 that 
lowers the demolition costs to the actual bid amount, eliminates the farmers’ market, 
lowers the façade allocation, and slightly reduces other overhead costs associated with 
board housekeeping and Family Movie Night. The result is a balanced budget that still 
allows for spending beyond what is already encumbered. A resolution that outlines all 
accounts in the fund is included. 
 

 CLOSED SESSION  
There is a matter involving a staff member of the city that I need to discuss with the city 
council. The employee has requested that this matter be discussed in a closed session, 
and this is a right that an employee can invoke under the Open Meetings Act.  There is 
also a real estate matter that has been presented to the city that I wish to go over. 
 

Council Questions, Inquiries, Requests and Comments    
   

 Tom is looking at the missing signs that have been noted on Chesterfield 
Drive.  

 We plan to make the calendars more legible for next year as it relates to 
noting the city council meetings and recycling on the same days.  

 

City Council Packet 9 September 22, 2014



 
City of Swartz Creek 

RESOLUTIONS  
Regular Council Meeting, Monday, September 22, 2014, 7:00 P.M. 

 
Resolution No. 140922-4A  MINUTES – September 08, 2014 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Minutes of the Regular Council 
Meeting held Monday, September 8, 2014, to be circulated and placed on file. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For:_______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________  

 
Resolution No. 140922-5A AGENDA APPROVAL 

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as presented / printed / 
amended for the Regular Council Meeting of September 22, 2014, to be circulated and 
placed on file. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 140922-6A CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of September 
22, 2014, to be circulated and placed on file. 
  
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 140922-8A MDOT PARK & RIDE CONTRACT – MILLER ROAD 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
WHEREAS, the MDOT has affirmatively found that contracting with municipalities for 
maintenance of state trunk lines and bridges within local jurisdictions is in the best 
public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek and the Michigan Department of Transportation 
an existing contractual relationship in which the city provides specific maintenance 

City Council Packet 10 September 22, 2014



services for the park and ride facility on Miller Road by I-69, including snow removal, 
trash collection, mowing, and other regular maintenance , and; 
 
WHEREAS, the MDOT has submitted a contract that continues this relationship for the 
next state fiscal year, contract no. 2014-0421. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek agrees to enter into 
an a contract with the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT), a copy of 
which is attached hereto, for the purpose of maintaining the park and ride facility on 
Miller Road,  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Swartz Creek designate the Director of 
Public Services as the maintenance superintendent, the Finance Director as the 
contract supervisor, and further directs the City Manager to execute the agreement on 
behalf of the City. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 140922–8B MILLER ROAD OUTLOT SALE 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek owns a certain piece of real property on Miller 
Road, identified as parcel 58-36-578-018, an out lot, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the city received an unsolicited offer to purchase this property from an 
adjacent landowner, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the city council and staff, finding this property to be of marginal value to 
the city and no value to non-adjacent land owners, permitted the formal solicitation of 
offers from both neighbors with Miller Road frontage, and;  
 
WHEREAS, one offer was received by the stated deadline from an adjacent land 
owner in the amount of $1,000, and; 
 
WHEREAS, under the city’s land sale policy, the city council finds the sale process 
and consideration to be in the best interest of the public. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek directs the city manager to create a 
suitable sale instrument that protects the public easements on the site, ensures 
combination of the out lot to the lot of the purchaser, and transfers the property to the 
highest bidder, Justin Ellison, for the consideration of $1,000. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that said instrument be brought back to the city council 
for approval in accordance with the city charter.  

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 

City Council Packet 11 September 22, 2014



Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution No. 130922-8C AMEND CITY-WIDE RATES, FEES AND CHARGES  
 

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

WHEREAS, the City collects rates, fees, fees for permits, charges for services, cost 
recovery’s and cost recovery for consulting services, and; 

 
WHEREAS, such rates, fees, fees for permits, charges for services, cost recovery’s 
and cost recovery for consulting services are a necessary and essential part of the 
funding for the services that the City provides, and: 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s Code of Ordinances defines and provides for certain rates, 
fees, fees for permits, charges for services, cost recovery’s and cost recovery for 
consulting services, and; 

 
WHEREAS, other such rates, fees, fees for permits, charges for services, cost 
recovery’s and cost recovery for consulting services are provided for by resolution of 
the City Council, statutory provision, past practice, policy and other such actions, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has amended the City’s Code of Ordinances to provide for 
various rates, fees, fees for permits, charges for services, cost recovery’s and cost 
recovery for consulting services to be set by resolution of the City Council, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the City has need to implement additional rates, fees, fees for permits, 
charges for services, cost recovery’s and cost recovery for consulting services to be 
set by resolution of the City Council, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to have all such rates, fees, fees for permits, charges for 
services, cost recovery’s and cost recovery for consulting services organized into a 
single resolution that can be visited periodically and adjusted accordingly. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved the City of Swartz Creek hereby sets its rates, 
fees, fees for permits, charges for services, cost recovery’s and cost recovery for 
consulting services in accordance with the following schedule, effective immediately or 
as soon as practical thereafter, table as follows: 
 

CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK RATES, FEES PERMITS & CHARGES FOR SERVICES 
 

1. Chapter 1: Municipal Ordinance Violations Bureau (Parking Fines) 
 

The following parking violations shall be punishable by the fines indicated: 
 

             Offense           Fine 
 

(a)  Parking too far from curb       $ 20.00 
(b)  Angle parking violations          $ 20.00 
(c)  Obstructing traffic           $ 20.00 
 
Prohibited parking (signs un-necessary) 

          
(d)  On sidewalk        $ 20.00 

City Council Packet 12 September 22, 2014



(e)  In front of drive        $ 20.00 
(f)  Within intersection       $ 20.00 
(g)  Within 15 feet of hydrant       $ 20.00 
(h)  On crosswalk        $ 20.00 
(i)  Within 20 feet of crosswalk or 15 feet of corner lot lines   $ 20.00 
(j)  Within 30 feet of street side traffic sign or signal    $ 20.00 
(k)  Within 50 feet of railroad crossing       $ 20.00 
(l)  Within 20 feet of fire station entrance      $ 20.00 
(m)  Within 75 feet of fire station entrance on opposite  

 side of street (signs required)       $ 20.00 
(n)  Beside street excavation when traffic obstructed    $ 20.00 
(o)  Double parking         $ 20.00 
(p)  On bridge of viaduct or within tunnel      $ 20.00 
(q)  Within 200 feet of accident where police in attendance   $ 20.00 
(r)  In front of theater          $ 20.00 
(s)  Blocking emergency exit       $ 20.00 
(t)  Blocking fire escape or fire lane       $ 50.00 
(u)  In a handicapped space       $100.00 

 
(v)  In prohibited zone (signs required)      $ 20.00 
(w)  In alley (signs required)       $ 20.00 

 
Parking for prohibited purpose   

 
(x)  Displaying vehicle for sale       $ 20.00 
(y)  Working or repairing vehicle       $ 20.00 
(z)  Displaying advertising        $ 20.00 
(aa)  Selling merchandise        $ 20.00 
(bb)  Storage over 48 hours        $ 20.00 

 
(cc)  Wrong side boulevard roadway        $ 20.00 
(dd)  Loading zone violation        $ 20.00 
(ee)  Bus, parking other than bus stop      $ 20.00 
(ff)    Taxicab, parking other than cab stand       $ 20.00 
(gg)  Bus, taxicab stand violations          $ 20.00 
(hh)  Failure to set brakes          $ 20.00 
(ii)    Parked on grade wheels not turned to curb     $ 20.00 
(jj)    Parked on lawn extension within right of way    $ 20.00 
 
All $20.00 violations not paid within 20 days will be accessed a $10.00 late fee. 

 
2. Chapter 2: Liability for Expense of an Emergency Operation (Hazardous Materials Cleanup 

Cost Recovery) 
Cost shall be actual expenses inclusive of all Police & Fire Department wages, equipment and 
motor-pool and / or any sub-contracted actual expenses associated with hazardous materials clean-
up. 

 
3. Chapter 2: Liability for Expense of an Emergency Response (Alcohol Related Arrests, 

Accidents) 
A. A cost of $150 shall be assessed to each defendant convicted of O.U.I.L. – O.U.I.D or O.W.I.  

The cost recovery shall be collected as a part of the fines and costs set by the 67th District 
Court. 

 
B. Actual costs shall be assessed to each defendant convicted of O.U.I.L. – O.U.I.D or O.W.I. in 

which a motor vehicle accident occurred.  The cost recovery shall be collected as a part of the 
fines and costs set by the 67th District Court.  In the event the court declines collection, they 
shall be billed direct to the defendant.   

 

City Council Packet 13 September 22, 2014



C. For the purpose of determining costs for extensive investigation and cleanup recovery for 
emergency response for alcohol related arrests and accidents, the following table shall be used: 

Police Personnel $40 Per Hour 
Police Clerical 30 Per Hour 
Police Car 15 Per Hour 
Fire Personnel 20 Per Hour 
Fire Pumper 250 Per Hour 
Fire Support Vehicles 100 Per Hour 

 
4. Chapter 5: Cemetery Lots - Purchase 

The cost for purchase of cemetery lots will be $100.00 per lot. 
 

5. Chapter 5: Cemetery, Charges for Grave Openings, etc. 
Grave openings shall be actual costs, either as sub-contracted or performed by City Employees, 
plus a 15% administrative fee. 

 
6. Chapter 11: Park Reservation Fees 

 
            Elms Park 
Pavilion #1 $  70.00 
Pavilion #2 $  120.00 
Pavilion #3 $  70.00 
Pavilion #4 $  120.00 

 
          Winshall Park 
Pavilion #1 $  70.00 
Pavilion #2 $  70.00 
Pavilion #3 $  70.00 
 
Deposit  $100.00 

 
7. Chapter 15: Permit, Sidewalk Installation 

 $25.00 
 

8. Chapter 15: Permit for Excavation, Right of Way or Other City Property 
$100.00 

 
9. Chapter 19: Water System Use, Rates and Charges 

(A) Charges for water supply services to premises within the city connected with the water 
supply system shall be as follows: 

 
Rates for Quarterly Billings 

 
                                                                   Readiness to serve charge 

5/8”, 3/4", 1” $52.17 
1.5” $220.77 
2” $353.23 
3” $662.31 
4” $1,103.85 
6” $2,207.70 

 
Commodity charge (per 100 cubic feet of water consumed):  $5.45 

                                  
Additional meters, connected for the exclusive purpose of registering water consumed and NOT 
returned to the sewer system shall be charged the commodity charge only (example: lawn 
sprinkler system). 

 
(B)  Any water customer may have water services temporarily shut off for any time period during 
which the premises, for which the water service is provided, will be unoccupied.  The request for 

City Council Packet 14 September 22, 2014



such shut off shall be made in writing on forms to be provided by the city.  The written request 
shall specify the reason for the shut off and the date on which the water service shall be shut 
off. 

 
(C)  There shall be a Twenty Dollar ($20.00) charge for shutting off the water service pursuant 
to such request and a Twenty Dollar ($20.00) charge for turning the water service back on, if the 
shut off or turn on is performed during normal business hours.  If this shut off or turn on is 
performed outside of normal business hours, the charge shall be One-Hundred Dollars 
($100.00).  Such charges shall also apply if water is shut off or turned back on pursuant to 
account delinquency.  The City Manager may waive shut off and turn on fees for reasonable 
cause. 

 
(D)  Water customers shall continue to be billed for a readiness to service charge while 
connected to the system. 
 
(E)     Bulk water sales shall be in accordance with the following fee schedule: 
 

Bulk Water Purchases  
   1 cubic ft. = 7.4805 

Gallons 
   

     
Gallons  Cubic ft. Cost 

Effective 
09/2014 

 3,740 499.96658 $87.00 $104.00 
5,000 668.40452 $97.00 $116.00 

 10,000 1336.809 $133.00 $160.00 
 15,000 2005.2136 $170.00 $204.00 
 20,000 2673.6181 $206.00 $247.00 
  

10. Chapter 19: Water & Sewer Tap Fees 
(A)    There shall be paid, with respect to all premises connecting to the water and sanitary 

sewer system of the city, a tap-in fee pursuant to the following schedules: 
 

(1)     Single-family residence--$1,500 each for water & sanitary sewer 
 

 (2)     Multiple-family residence--$1,500 per unit each for water and sanitary sewer 
 
(B)    All other uses connecting to the water and/or sanitary sewer system of the city shall be 
required to pay tap-in fees at the rate of one-thousand, five hundred dollars ($1,500) per unit 
factor, pursuant to the unit factor table provided for by the Genesee County Division of Water 
and Waste.  In no case shall tap-in fees be less than one-thousand, five hundred dollars 
($1,500). 
 
(C)   Furthermore, for any structure used generally for more than one (1) purpose, connection 
fees shall be determined by applying the appropriate unit factors as set by the Genesee County 
Division of Water and Waste, to the various uses on any level, grade or sub-grade plane of the 
structure, provided that it is intended that the fees so derived shall be cumulative.  Tap fees 
shall also apply for any additional units that may be calculated and applied by the County WWS 
pursuant to change in use or otherwise. 

 
11. Chapter 19: Sanitary Sewer Rates 

 
Rates for Quarterly Billings   

 
Readiness to serve charge (per metered account):   $58.86  
Readiness to serve charge (non-metered accounts):  $129.11 
Commodity charge (per 100 cubic feet of water consumed):  $1.91  

 

City Council Packet 15 September 22, 2014



A readiness to serve charge equal to the number of calculated sewer units shall be charged to 
all customers connected to the city’s sewer system to offset fixed costs of system operation.  In 
addition, a commodity charge shall be applied to the sewer bill in an amount equal to the above 
rate multiplied by the number of ccf that the accompanying water account registers. If the sewer 
connection is not accompanied by a water meter to register water usage, the charge shall be 
considered non-metered and no commodity charge shall be applied.  

 
For the purposes of determining sanitary sewer rates, per unit sewage disposal calculations 
resulting in a fraction of a whole number shall be rounded up to the next highest whole number.  

 
12. Chapter 20: Weed Cutting Fees 

$300 per cut 
 

13. Building & Trade Inspection Fees 
 
A.  Building Permit Fees: Appendix A 21.06 
$50.00 for first $1,000 value $5.00 per $1,000 thereafter and $50.00 for a one-time Inspection 
fee. 
 
B.  Electrical Inspection Fees 

Application Fee (non-refundable)    $50 
 
Service 
Through 200 Amp.      $10 
Over 200 Amp. thru 600 Amp.    $15 
Over 600 Amp. thru 800 Amp.    $20 
Over 800 Amp. thru 1200 Amp.    $25 
Over 1200 Amp. (GFI only)     $50 
Circuits       $5 
Lighting Fixtures-per 25     $6 
Dishwasher      $5 
Furnace-Unit Heater     $5 
Electrical-Heating Units (baseboard)   $4 
Power Outlets (ranges, dryers, etc.)   $7 
 
Signs 
Unit       $10 
Letter       $15 
Neon-each 25 feet      $20 
Feeders-Bus Ducts, etc.-per 50’    $6 
Mobile Home Park Site     $6 
Recreational Vehicle Park Site    $4 
 
K.V.A. & H.P.  
Units up to 20      $6 
Units 21 to 50 K.V.A. or H.P.    $10 
Units 51 K.V.A. or H.P. & over    $12 
 
Fire Alarm Systems (excl. smoke detectors) 
Up to 10 devices      $50 
11 to 20 devices      $100    
Over 20 devices      $5 each 
 
Data/Telecommunication Outlets 
1-19 devices      $5 each 
20-300 devices      $100 
Over 300 devices      $300 
Energy Retrofit-Temp. Control    $45 
Conduit only or grounding only    $45 

City Council Packet 16 September 22, 2014



 
Inspections 
Special/Safety Insp. (includes cert. fee)   $50 
Additional Inspection     $50 
Final Inspection      $50 
Certification Fee      $20  

 
C. Mechanical Inspection Fees 

Application Fee (non-refundable)    $50 
 
Residential Heating System (includes  
duct & pipe, new building only)    $50 
Gas/Oil Burning Equipment  
(furnace, roof top units, generators)    $30 
Boiler       $30 
Water Heater      $5 
Damper       $5 
Solid Fuel Equip. (includes chimney)   $30 
Gas Burning Fireplace     $30 
Chimney, factory built (installed separately)   $25 
Solar; set of 3 panels-fluid transfer  
(includes piping)      $20 
Gas piping; each opening-new installation 
(residential)      $5 
Air Conditioning (includes split systems) 
RTU-Cooling only      $30 
Heat Pumps (complete residential)    $30 
Dryer, Bath & Kitchen Exhaust    $5 
 
Tanks 
Aboveground      $20 
Aboveground Connection     $20 
Underground      $25 
Underground Connection     $25 
Humidifiers/Air Cleaners     $10 
 
Piping-minimum fee $25 
Piping       $.05/ft 
Process piping      $.05/ft 
 
Duct-minimum fee $25     $.10/ft 
Heat Pumps; Commercial (pipe not included)  $20 
 
Air Handlers/Heat Wheels 
Under 10,000 CFM      $20 
Over 10,000 CFM      $60 
Commercial Hoods/Exhausters    $15 
Heat Recovery Units     $10 
V.A.V. Boxes      $10 
Unit Ventilators      $10 
Unit Heaters (terminal units)    $15 
 
Fire Suppression/Protection  
(includes piping) –minimum fee $20   $.75/head 
Evaporator Coils      $30 
Refrigeration (split system)     $30 
Chiller       $30 
Cooling Towers      $30 
Compressor/Condenser     $30 

City Council Packet 17 September 22, 2014



 
Inspections 
Special/Safety Insp. (includes cert. fee)   $50 
Additional Inspection     $50 
Final Inspection      $50 
Certification Fee      $20 

 
D. Plumbing Inspection Fees 

Application Fee (non-refundable)    $50 
 
Mobile Home Park Site 
Fixtures, floor drains, special drains,   $5 each 
Water connected appliances    $5 each 
Stacks (soil, waste, vent and conductor)   $3 each 
Sewage ejectors, sumps     $5 each 
Sub-soil drains      $5 each 
 
Water Service 
Less than 2”      $5 
2” to 6”       $25 
Over 6”       $50 
Connection (bldg. drain-bldg. sewers)   $5 
 
Sewers (sanitary, storm or combined) 
Less than 6”      $5 
6” and Over      $25 
Manholes, Catch Basins     $5 each 
 
Water Distributing Pipe (system) 
¾” Water Distribution Pipe     $5 
1” Water Distribution Pipe     $10 
1 ¼” Water Distribution Pipe    $15 
1 ½” Water Distribution Pipe    $20 
2” Water Distribution Pipe     $25 
Over 2” Water Distribution Pipe    $30 
Reduced pressure zone back-flow preventer  $5 each 
Domestic water treatment and  
filtering equipment only     $5 
Medical Gas System     $45 
 
Inspections 
Special/Safety Insp. (includes cert. fee)   $50 
Additional Inspection     $50 
Final Inspection      $50 
Certification Fee      $20 

 
14. Appendix B: Franchises   

$250 application fee plus actual expenses related to preparation by City Attorney. 
 

15. Miscellaneous Fees 
 

A. Copies: 
 Black & White:  50¢ for the first page & 10¢ for each additional page. 
 Color or Mixed Color and Black & White:  50¢ for the first page & 20¢ for each additional page. 
 

B.  Freedom of Information Act Requests:   
 50¢ for the first page and 10¢ for each additional page (20¢ for color or mixed color and black & 

white) plus all actual costs for outside re-production (i.e. photo re-prints, blueprint copies, etc.).  

City Council Packet 18 September 22, 2014



Extensive search requests shall have an additional per hour fee equal to wages only of the 
lowest paid clerical position employed with the City. 

 
C.  Police Reports: 

$5 for copies under 6 pages, 10¢ for each page thereafter.  Extensive research, reproduction 
costs, etc. shall be charged in accordance with F.O.I.A. requests. 

 
D. Gun Registrations, Permits & Safety Inspections: 

 No Charge 
 

 E. Towing & Impound Fees: 
$100 for each vehicle towed as incidental to arrest or other civil custody.  $100 for each vehicle 
towed as abandoned.  The Chief of Police may, at his/her discretion, waive any towing fee when 
in his/her opinion, special circumstance exists.  A report shall be filed when any such action is 
taken. 

 
F.  Weddings: 
 $25 per ceremony 
 
G.  Fax Services: 
  50¢ per page for the first 10 pages, then $.10 per page thereafter 
 
H. Notary Services: 
 $5.00 per item 
 
I. $25 each for any check returned unpaid for account insufficient, closed or stopped  

 
16. Chapter 13 & 16: Development Plans, Administrative Fees, Subdivision Site Plan & Review 

Fees 
 
A. Site Plan Review:   

Property Re-Zoning  $250 
Single & Multiple-Family (non-plat)  $300 plus $5.00 per lot   
Cluster Housing Development  $300 plus $5.00 per unit 
Mobile Home Park   $400 plus $5.00 per unit 
Commercial Development  $450 plus $50.00 per acre/fraction 
Industrial Development  $400 plus $50.00 per acre/fraction 
Office Development  $350 plus $50.00 per acre/fraction 
Institutional  $300 plus $50.00 per acre/fraction 
Public/semi-public uses  $300 plus $50.00 per acre/fraction 
Special Approval or Conditional Use  $250 plus $5.00 per acre/fraction 
PUD/Mixed Use Review    $500 plus $50.00 per acre/fraction Consulting 
Fees (All Reviews)    Actual consultant costs 
Revisions     ½ of original review fee 
 

B.  Building and Zoning: 
Swimming Pool Permit    $25 
Misc. Zoning Permit       $25 
Sidewalk Permit        $25 
Sign Permit        See Building Permits 
Structure Movement Permit    $95 
Demolition Permit (Including ROW Permit)    $150 
Right of Way Permit    $100 
Home Occupation Permit    $95   
Variance Review    $250 per variance  
Lot Split/Combination: City Ordinance Section 16.2  $150 plus $5.00 per lot  
Public or Private Road Plan Reviews    $400 per mile/fraction 
Consulting Fees    Actual consultant costs 
Zoning Code    $10 CD, $25 Paper Copy 

City Council Packet 19 September 22, 2014



Engineering Standards Manual    $10 CD, $25 Paper Copy 
Medical Marijuana Dispensary/Facility Review    $500 

 
C. Subdivision Review 

Preliminary Subdivision Review-Tentative   $300 plus $5.35 per lot  
Preliminary Subdivision Review- Final    $160 plus $2.70 per lot 
Final Plat Review      $160 plus $1.00 per lot 

 
17.   Chapter 1: Municipal Civil Infraction Fines 

Civic Infraction Citation Fines:  
First Offense       $100 
Second Offense       $200 
Third Offense       $300 

 
Civic Infraction Notice Fines:  
First Offense       $75 
Second Offense       $150 
Third Offense       $250 

________________________________________________________ 
 

ADOPTION & REVISION HISTORY: 
Resolution No. 050711-07  Dated July 11, 2005 
Resolution No. 100208-06  Dated February 8, 2010 
Resolution No. 101206-04  Dated December 6, 2010 (Water-Sewer-RTS) 
Resolution No. 111114-05  Dated November 14, 2011 (Park Fees) 
Resolution No. 110613-07  Dated June 13, 2011 (Water Fees) 
Resolution No. 120611-05  Dated June 11, 2012 (Water Fees) 
Resolution No. 120709-05  Dated July 9, 2012 (Bulk Water Fees) 
Resolution No. 130610-09  Dated June 10, 2013 (Water Fees) 
Resolution No  130826-8A  Dated August 26, 2013 (K.W.A. Water Fees) 
Resolution No. 140922-8B  Dated September 22, 2014 (Utility and MMD Fees) 

   
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 140911–8D RECREATION PASSPORT GRANT 
 

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the proposal dated August 8, 2014, 
submitted by ROWE for the purpose of preparing and submitting a grant to the DNR, 
funds to be appropriated from 101-783.000 (Elms Park) and further direct the city 
manager to sign this proposal. 
  
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 140911-8E 2014-2015 FY DDA BUDGET 
  

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

City Council Packet 20 September 22, 2014



I Move the Swartz Creek City Council, in accordance with the General Appropriations 
Act and Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act, adopt the following 2014-2015 Fiscal 
Budget Amendment for Fund 248. 
 

Total Estimated Revenues 74,618 
 Total All Funds Appropriations 74,509 
  

 
 

City Council Packet 21 September 22, 2014



 CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
SWARTZ CREEK, MICHIGAN 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
DATE 9/8/2014 

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Krueger in the Swartz Creek City 
Council Chambers, 8083 Civic Drive. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
Councilmembers Present:  Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt, Krueger, Porath, 

Shumaker. 
 
Councilmembers Absent:   None. 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Adam Zettel, City Clerk Juanita Aguilar, 

Treasurer Deanna Korth, DPS Director Tom Svrcek, 
Chief Rick Clolinger, Engineer Lou Fleury. 

  
Others Present: Boots Abrams, Tommy Butler, Bud Grimes, Keith 

Grimes, Pat Grimes, Shirley Oliver, Ron Schultz, Bob 
Plumb, Rick Ballreich, Betty Binder, Craig Culinski. 

 
Chief Clolinger introduced the two new full-time police officers; Officer Blain Adkins and 
Officer Steve McFadden, to the council.   
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 Resolution No. 140908-01       (Carried) 
 

Motion by Councilmember Porath 
  Second by Councilmember Hurt 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council hereby approve the Minutes of the Regular 
Council Meeting held Monday, August 25, 2014 to be circulated and placed on file. 

 
YES: Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt, Krueger, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams. 

 NO:   None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  

Resolution No. 140908-02       (Carried) 
  

Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams    
Second by Councilmember Shumaker 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as amended, for the 
Regular Council Meeting of September 8, 2014, to be circulated and placed on file. 

 

City Council Packet 22 September 22, 2014



YES: Hicks, Hurt, Krueger, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried.  

 
REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
City Manager’s Report 
 
  Resolution No. 140908-03       (Carried) 
 

 Motion by Councilmember Shumaker 
Second by Councilmember Hurt 
 

 I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of 
September 8, 2014, to be circulated and placed on file. 

  
YES: Hurt, Krueger, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC 
 
Chief Rick Clolinger and Mundy Township Chief Dan Atkinson made a presentation about   
Regional Police Services.   
 
Tommy Butler, 40 Somerset, spoke about the shared services presentation.  Mr. Butler 
stated that he agrees that politics will play a role in the outcome.  Mr. Butler stated that he 
feels that it is moving way too fast.  Mr. Butler asked how shared services would work with 
the city charter.   
 
5 minute recess was called. 
 
COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
Appropriation and Bid Award, C.D.B.G. Streetscape Improvements 
 
  Resolution No. 140908-04      (Carried) 
 
   Motion by Councilmember Hicks 
   Second by Councilmember Hurt 
 

WHEREAS, on April 28, 2014, the City of Swartz Creek directed the city engineer to 
design and oversee construction of a parking lot & streetscape enhancement 
project for property owned by the city on Morrish Road, north of the Miller Road 
intersection, said services to be funded with a general fund allocation of $4,335 
towards project design and construction engineering; and  
 
WHEREAS, the construction scope of the project was approved to correspond to 
the Community Development Block Grant funds available to the city, an amount 
equal to $29,101 at that time; and 

City Council Packet 23 September 22, 2014



 
WHEREAS, the Genesee County Regional Planning Commission has additional 
funds available for this purpose, and the city applied to capture said funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the new funding amount expected to be available from the CDBG 
source is $60,450 for construction and $4,335 for engineering; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city’s engineer increased the project scope accordingly; and 
 
WHEREAS, the enhancement improvements were let to bid by the City’s Engineer, 
Rowe Professional Services, Inc., and bids were opened and tabulated on 
Wednesday September 3, 2014 with the low bidder being Oak Construction 
Corporation, in the amount of $56,490, total project costs as follows: 
                              

Construction $ 56,490 
Design Engineering $   4,335 

Project Total: $ 60,825 
Less C.D.B.G. Funds -$ 64,785 

City Match: -$  3,960* 
   *This negative figure represents contingency. No excess funds 
will be paid to the city. 
 
WHEREAS, after the checking of references, the city’s engineer recommends 
approval of the low bid. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek hereby accepts 
the low bid from Oak Construction, and appropriate an amount not to exceed 
$56,490 plus 10% contingency, funds to be allocated from 101 General Fund with 
re-imbursement for said costs expected at a capped amount of $60,450. 

 
Discussion Took Place. 
 
   YES: Krueger, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt. 
   NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
Springbrook East Proposal Approval       
 

 Resolution No.  140908-05      (Carried)
         

   Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
   Second by Councilmember Hurt 

 
WHEREAS, the city acquired a total of 12 vacant units from street paving special 
assessment projects in Springbrook East in December, 2011, including the following 
units: 

Springbrook East Units  
Parcel Number Number  Property Address Owner 

    

City Council Packet 24 September 22, 2014



58-36-676-039       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-040       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-041       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-042       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-043       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-044       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-051       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-053       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-054       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-055       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-056       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-064       0 RUSSELL DR       City Swartz Creek 

 
WHEREAS, the city has determined that a public purpose exists for obtaining the 
lots, being control and guarantee for the collection of the special assessment fees, 
the preservation of property values for the existing homes in the subdivisions and 
the resolve of underground utility and storm-surface water issues; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city previously found that the long term intent is to sell the lots to 
recover assessment costs and other administrative costs that may occur and to 
preserve property values consistent with the findings within this resolution; and  
 
WHEREAS, the city issued a request for proposals to develop these units and has 
subsequently had the proposals reviewed by a committee; and 
 
WHEREAS, the committee established by council recommends sale of the units to 
Woodside Builders, with certain conditions; and 
 
WHEREAS, this recommendation has been affirmed by members of the 
Springbrook East home owners’ association board; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Swartz Creek City Council approved the sale of all twelve units in 
Springbrook East to Woodside Builders, Inc. in accordance with the quit claim 
deeds attached at a regular meeting of the city council on July 28, 2014, subject to 
certain conditions and a 30 day public inspection and review period; and 
 
WHEREAS, the required public inspection and review period has terminated, and 
no comments have been made verbally or in writing on this matter. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the city council affirms the sale via 
purchase agreement and quit claim deed of all 12 units to Woodside Builders, Inc. 
under the terms and conditions set by resolution No. 140728-07. 

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the city council authorizes the establishment of 
an escrow account, to be funded by the buyer in the amount of $3,500 per unit sale, 
for the purpose of completing the unfinished Phase One infrastructure 
improvements, including the capping of the streets, and hereby authorizes 
Woodside to engage a contractor to complete said improvements under the 
supervision and approval of the city’s engineer. 

City Council Packet 25 September 22, 2014



 
Discussion Ensued. 
 
  YES: Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt, Krueger. 
  NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
Street Usage Permit, Annual School Homecoming Football Parade 
 
  Resolution No. 140908-06      (Carried) 
    

Motion by Councilmember Hurt 
   Second by Councilmember Gilbert 

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek approve the application of the Swartz Creek 
Student Council to conduct their annual High School Homecoming Parade on 
Friday, September 26, 2014 from 4:30 pm to 6:30 pm. Parade route as follows: 

 
  Crapo/Maple, Northbound to Miller 
  Miller Westbound to Fairchild 
  Fairchild Southbound to Middle School 
 

Under the direction and control of the office of the Chief of Police and in accordance 
with the stipulations and conditions set forth in the permit and application. 

 
Discussion Took Place. 
 
   YES: Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt, Krueger, Porath. 
   NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
Commission Appointment 
 
  Resolution No. 140908-07      (Carried) 
 
   Motion by Councilmember Porath 
   Second by Councilmember Hurt 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council affirm the nomination of the Mayor and 
appoint Mr. Fred Pajtas to the Swartz Creek Zoning Board of Appeals, as an 
alternate, to finish a three year term expiring on June 30, 2017. 

 
Discussion Ensued. 
 
   YES:  Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt, Krueger, Porath, Shumaker. 
   NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC: 
 
None.  
 

City Council Packet 26 September 22, 2014



REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
Councilmember Porath stated that he doesn’t feel the city is rushing into the possibility of 
shared services, but that it is a long project and many things need to be done.  
Councilmember Porath stated that he doesn’t feel the council needs to meet with the 
Mundy Township board at this time.  Mr. Porath stated that he feels they need to gather 
more information first.   
 
Councilmember Shumaker spoke about the parking lot repairs.  Mr. Shumaker stated that 
he feels a railing is needed for safety issues at the rear of the fire department.  Mr. 
Shumaker asked if a separate sewer lead for each condo unit was in place.  Mr. Shumaker 
spoke about retention/detention basins, asking if there was an inspection plan in place.  
Mr. Shumaker stated that the house demolition on Third Street looks like an ongoing 
scrapyard.   
 
Councilmember Gilbert spoke about the retention pond near Burger King stating that it 
looks bad.  Mr. Gilbert also spoke about the mess at the Third Street demolition.  Mr. 
Gilbert stated that the light pole in his yard is finally in.   
 
Councilmember Hurt spoke about the shared services presentation.  Mr. Hurt also stated 
that he feels a joint meeting with Mundy Township is not needed at this time.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams agreed on waiting a bit longer for a joint meeting.  Mr. Abrams 
spoke about the Small Cities and Villages meeting that he attended.  Mr. Abrams spoke 
about who the Chief of Police is directed by, according to the charter.  Mr. Abrams stated 
that the parking lots look great.   
 
Mayor Krueger spoke about speaking at a fire chief’s memorial recently as well as at the 
high school.   
  
Adjournment 
 

Resolution No. 140908-08       (Carried) 
 

Motion by Councilmember Shumaker 
Second by Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams  

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek adjourn the Regular Session of the City Council 
meeting at 9:00 p.m. 

 
 YES: Unanimous Voice Vote. 

                      NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
 
 
___________________________   _____________________________ 
David A. Krueger, Mayor           Juanita Aguilar, City Clerk 

City Council Packet 27 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 28 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 29 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 30 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 31 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 32 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 33 September 22, 2014



1

Adam Zettel

From: Randy Haney <rhaney@aarealtors.net>
Sent: Tuesday, June 24, 2014 5:14 PM
To: azettel@cityofswartzcreek.org
Subject: Vacant Lot Offer to Purchase - Miller Rd

Adam, 
 
The purchaser Justin Ellison, of 7168 Miller Rd, Swartz Creek, MI is interested in purchasing the lot from the city next to his 
new home on the west side of him. 
 
He is a young single man who has just graduated from college recently and has begun working. He is in the process of 
remodeling the home he purchased. 
 
I had heard the lot next to him was been given back to the city for property taxes and thought if the city wanted to sell it, 
Justin Ellison would be interested possibly in purchasing it. He really doesn’t need it, as he works most of the time with his 
career and I know he doesn’t plan on building on it either. 
 
If the city of Swartz Creek would like to sell it, Justin has offered $1,000 with being responsible for only those property taxes, 
fees, etc. from the date of closing. 
 
I would arrange the closing for you through a local title company. Cash sales usually require a fee of $250 with most title 
companies. I may be able to get that reduced. The rest of the fees for seller would be very little and I will not charge any 
fees for my assistance, (just to clarify). With most cash sales, the buyer and seller split the closing fee. In this case you 
could just give the buyer a price and have him pay all the necessary recording and closing fees. 
 
I would write the purchase agreement and follow it through to closing for you. I have done similar favors with Clayton 
township recently and would be glad to assist you and Justin with this sale and closing as well. 
 
Thanks so much! 
 
 

Randy Haney, ABR, CRB, CRS 

Principal Associate Broker 
American Associates, Inc. Realtors 
Cell ph. 810‐691‐4124 
Toll Free: 888‐733‐3333 

 
http://www.aarealtors.net 
rhaney@aarealtors.net 
 
Over 130 Million in Personal Real Estate Sales  
 

Celebrating our Company’s 30th  Year with Over 10,000 Clients and Over 1 Billion Dollars of Local Real Estate Sales in 
Genesee and Surrounding Counties. Experienced, Knowledgeable, Professional Realtors with a Proven Track Record of 
Highly Successful Home Sales, Anxiously Awaiting the Opportunity to Assist You. 

City Council Packet 34 September 22, 2014



Mille
r

Maya

Lindsey

Maple
Crest

Russell

City of  Swartz Creek
0 0.03 0.06 0.09 0.120.015

Miles ®City Owned OutlotCity Council Packet 35 September 22, 2014

azettel
Callout
7168 Miller

azettel
Text Box
Kroger

azettel
Text Box
Springbrook East

azettel
Callout
City outlot

azettel
Callout
7178 Miller



*** Information herein deemed reliable but not guaranteed***

GENESEECounty:CITY OF SWARTZ CREEKJurisdiction: Printed onParcel Number: 58-36-578-018

5,304C9,80009,8002011

1,000C1,000M7,0006,0001,0002012

EXEMPTEXEMPTEXEMPTEXEMPT2013

EXEMPTEXEMPTEXEMPTEXEMPT2014

Taxable
Value

Tribunal/
Other

Board of
Review

Assessed
Value

Building
Value

Land
Value

Year

                               * Factors *
Description   Frontage  Depth  Front  Depth  Rate %Adj. Reason             Value
'C' FRONTAGE     60.00 300.00 1.1362 1.0000   170   82  UNBUILDABLE        9,503
   60 Actual Front Feet, 0.41 Total Acres    Total Est. Land Value =       9,503

Land Value Estimates for Land Table 00004.00004  MILLER/MORRISH SEC 1 & 36

Who     When       What

Level
Rolling
Low
High
Landscaped
Swamp
Wooded
Pond
Waterfront
Ravine
Wetland
Flood Plain

Topography of 
Site

Dirt Road
Gravel Road
Paved Road
Storm Sewer
Sidewalk
Water
Sewer
Electric
Gas
Curb
Street Lights
Standard Utilities
Underground Utils.

Public
Improvements

VacantXImproved

The Equalizer.  Copyright (c) 1999 - 2009.
Licensed To: City of Swartz Creek, County 
of Genesee, Michigan

Comments/Influences
LOT B WRAY ACRES 84-0000-000

Tax Description

CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK
8083 CIVIC DRIVE
SWARTZ CREEK MI 48473

Owner's Name/Address

MILLER RD

Property Address

2014 Est TCV 0

MAP #: 

P.R.E.   0%  

School: SWARTZ CREEK

StatusNumberDateBuilding Permit(s)Zoning: R-4  Class: EXEMPT VACANT

0.020060614005INVALID SALE        QC06/12/20060WOODSIDE BUILDERS  INCWOODSIDE CENTRAL  LLC

100.020120210000778QUIT CLAIMQC01/17/20120CITY OF SWARTZ CREEKWOODSIDE BUILDERS  INC

0.020120501004507INVALID SALE        IV04/02/20120GENESEE COUNTY TREASURERCITY OF SWARTZ CREEK

100.020120817006668QUIT CLAIMQC08/15/20120CITY OF SWARTZ CREEKGENESEE COUNTY TREASURER

Prcnt.
Trans.

Verified
By

Liber
& Page

Terms of SaleInst.
Type

Sale
Date

Sale
Price

GranteeGrantor

07/01/2014

City Council Packet 36 September 22, 2014



 

Adam Zettel, AICP 
City Manager 
810.287.2147 

azettel@cityofswartzcreek.org 
 
 

 Date: September 18, 2014 
 
To:  Justin Ellison 
From:  Adam Zettel 
RE: Sale of city lot 
 
 
Mr. Ellison: 
 
You are receiving this letter because you own property adjacent to an out lot that is owned by 
the City of Swartz Creek.  The city acquired this lot a few years ago because there was a county 
sewer initiative that included plans to bury a regional transmission line under a portion of this 
property. Those plans are no more, and the city is interested in selling this lot.  
 
Information on this lot, including a map, is enclosed with this letter. Since the lot has little value 
to the public, the city desires to investigate interest by others in acquiring it.  Because the lot is 
not buildable, the likely buyers are limited to the adjacent property owners. If you are interested 
in purchasing this lot, the city is taking ‘final and best’ offers in writing. The minimum offer that 
will be considered at this time for the entire lot is $1,000. 
 
It is expected that the lot would be transferred by a quit claim deed, with the city retaining a 
thirty (30) foot easement for the purpose of owning, operating, and maintaining an existing 
storm sewer. The city is not opposed to splitting this lot if there is interest in doing so from both 
adjacent property owners with Miller Road frontage.  
 
Please don’t hesitate to contact me on this matter if you have questions about the property or 
the process of placing an offer on the property. Please submit any such offer on or before 
September 1, 2014. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Adam H. Zettel, AICP 
City Manager 
City of Swartz Creek

 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
8083 Civic Drive 

Swartz Creek Michigan 48473 
Phone:  (810)-635-4464  Fax:  (810)-635-2887 

www.cityofswartzcreek.org  ftp://cityofswartzcreek.org 
City Council Packet 37 September 22, 2014

http://www.cityofswartzcreek.org/
ftp://cityofswartzcreek.org/
mailto:azettel@cityofswartzcreek.org


City Council Packet 38 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 39 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 40 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 41 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 42 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 43 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 44 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 45 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 46 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 47 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 48 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 49 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 50 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 51 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 52 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 53 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 54 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 55 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 56 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 57 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 58 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 59 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 60 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 61 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 62 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 63 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 64 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 65 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 66 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 67 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 68 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 69 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 70 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 71 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 72 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 73 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 74 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 75 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 76 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 77 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 78 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 79 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 80 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 81 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 82 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 83 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 84 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 85 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 86 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 87 September 22, 2014



09/04/2014                                    CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK                                              
                                                          CHECK DATE FROM 08/01/2014 - 08/31/2014                                              

Check Date Bank Check Vendor Name Description Amount

Bank GEN CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNT

08/07/2014 GEN 39351 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL MATS, SUPPLIES 33.08
UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 82.47

115.55

08/07/2014 GEN 39352 BRADLEY COLEMAN AND FRANK YIANNATJI DISPOSITION SEIZED PROP COMPL 13-000805 1,899.00
08/07/2014 GEN 39353 BS & A SOFTWARE ASSESSING ANNUAL MNTC 8/1/14-8/1/15 1,138.00
08/07/2014 GEN 39354 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/1-7/31/14 4524 MORRISH RD 43.63
08/07/2014 GEN 39355 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/1-7/31/14 ELMS PARKING LOT 29.38
08/07/2014 GEN 39356 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/1-7/31/14 STREET LIGHTS 10,307.07
08/07/2014 GEN 39357 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/1-7/31/14 TRAFFIC LIGHTS 439.16
08/07/2014 GEN 39358 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/1-7/31/14 SIRENS 28.95
08/07/2014 GEN 39359 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/4-8/1/14 E 8095 CIVIC DR 1,200.18
08/07/2014 GEN 39360 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/4-8/4/14 A WINSHALL RESTROOMS 29.18
08/07/2014 GEN 39361 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/4-8/1/14 E 8059 FORTINO DR 40.04
08/07/2014 GEN 39362 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/4-8/1/14 E 8083 CIVIC DR 969.81
08/07/2014 GEN 39363 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/4-8/4/14 E 8301 CAPPY LN 291.93
08/07/2014 GEN 39364 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/4-8/2/14 A 8499 MILLER RD 25.34
08/07/2014 GEN 39365 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/4-8/1/14 E 8100 CIVIC DR 1,132.84
08/07/2014 GEN 39366 CUSTOM PERSONALIZED LAWN CARE CORP MOSQUITO CONTROL 7/24/14 PAJTAS AMPHITHE 40.00

08/07/2014 GEN 39367 FAMILY FARM AND HOME INC WASP & HORNET SPRAY 41.88
NUTS/BOLTS/WASHERS 2.94
HEX SDS (2)/TRAILER LIGHT KIT/ABRSV CUT 38.93
HEX SDS 12 X 1 6.49
STRAPS (11)/RATCHET TIE DOWN (2) 83.87
SAFETY GLASSES (2) 19.98
BRUSH/SOAP/GREEN PAINT 40.45
15W40 5 GAL/BRUSH KILLER 63.98
YELLOW PAINT 31.99
RETURN SDS (6.49)

324.02

08/07/2014 GEN 39368 FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INSUR/EYEMED AUG 2014 VISION - RETIREES (5) 26.93
C. BUECHE JUNE-AUG 2014 VISION 17.85

44.78

08/07/2014 GEN 39369 FUNTASTIC INFLATABLES BOUNCE HOUSE/MOVIE NIGHT 6/13/14 250.00
BOUNCE HOUSE/MOVIE NIGHT 6/27/14 150.00
BOUNCE HOUSE/MOVIE NIGHT 7/11/14 150.00
BOUNCE HOUSE/MOVIE NIGHT 7/25/14 150.00
BOUNCE HOUSE/MOVIE NIGHT 8/8/14 150.00

850.00

08/07/2014 GEN 39370 GILL ROYS HARDWARE 15 PK YARD WASTE BAGS (2) 15.98
MORTAR MIX 14.97
ANTI-BACTERIAL SOAP 9.95
DRILL BIT 1.79
YELLOW PAINT 33.99
NUTS/BOLTS/SCREWS 0.70
LINE MARKING COVERS/RED PAINT 38.98
MORTAR MIX (2) 9.98
YELLOW PAINT 33.99

City Council Packet 88 September 22, 2014



SOAP 1.99
DRILL BIT/NUTS, BOLTS, SCREWS/ADHESIVE 11.28
1 BOX NAILS 13.99
CLEANING SUPPLIES 16.37
BRASS NUMBERS/NAIL SET/16 PK AA BATTERIE 35.38
YELLOW PAINT 18.88
GRAY SPRAY PAINT (2)/WHITE SPRAY PAINT ( 19.96
RETURN YELLOW PAINT (18.88)
JULY 2014 DISCOUNT (23.17)

236.13

08/07/2014 GEN 39371 GOV'T FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOC. RENEWAL 10/1/14-9/30/15 170.00
08/07/2014 GEN 39372 GRAND BLANC CEMENT PRODUCTS INC MANHOLE BLOCK 2' (18) 27.54
08/07/2014 GEN 39373 JOSE A MIRELES MOW & TRIM CITY PROPERTIES 790.00
08/07/2014 GEN 39374 JUANITA AGUILAR REIMB AUG 5TH ELECTION SUPPLIES 5.87
08/07/2014 GEN 39375 LANDMARK APPRAISAL CO ASSESSOR SERVICES OCT 1, 2013-SEPT 30, 2 2,324.00
08/07/2014 GEN 39376 MCNAMARA'S LAWN CARE LLC MOW & TRIM RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES (3) 250.00
08/07/2014 GEN 39377 OHM ADVISORS DESIGN ENG PROJ BILL #4 PROJ 121373 6,123.22
08/07/2014 GEN 39378 OHM ADVISORS DESIGN ENG PROJ BILL #4 PROJ 121372 6,978.81
08/07/2014 GEN 39379 PLANTE & MORAN PLLC CONSULTING SERVICES/YEAR END CLOSING 1,050.00

08/07/2014 GEN 39380 SELF SERVE LUMBER CO. SOFIT AND FASCIA 14.19
SOFFIT WORK TRIM 82.86

97.05

08/07/2014 GEN 39381 SHERWIN WILLIAMS 1 GALLON PAINT 53.19
08/07/2014 GEN 39382 SUBURBAN AUTO SUPPLY MINI LAMP 4.98
08/07/2014 GEN 39383 SWARTZ CREEK AREA SENIOR CITZ. JULY 2014 EXP OF 2013 GRANT 542.75
08/07/2014 GEN 39384 VERIZON WIRELESS JULY 2014 MONTHLY INVOICE 541.44
08/07/2014 GEN 39385 VIEW NEWSPAPER GROUP 8/13/14 ZBA PUBLIC HEARING 42.30

08/14/2014 GEN 39386 ACE OUTDOOR SERVICES LLC BLACK MULCH 155.00
SAND 76.00

231.00

08/14/2014 GEN 39387 ACE-SAGINAW PAVING COMPANY COLD PATCH 945.30

08/14/2014 GEN 39388 ACME BUILDING MATERIALS VINYL J CHANNEL SANDTONE 160.00
SOFFIT 768.00

928.00

08/14/2014 GEN 39389 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL MATS, SUPPLIES 33.08
UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 96.26

129.34

08/14/2014 GEN 39390 BLUE CARE NETWORK-EAST MI SEPT 2014 RETIREE MEDICAL INS KELLY 706.62
SEPT 2014 RETIREE MEDICAL INS OBRIEN 1,239.83
SEPT 2014 RETIREE MEDICAL INS PETRUCHA 1,479.62
SEPT 2014 RETIREE MEDICAL INS SHANNON 748.01
SEPT 2014 MED INS C. BUECHE 695.07
MEDICAL INS JULY-AUG 2014 ADKINS 1,081.35

5,950.50

08/14/2014 GEN 39391 BRANCHING OUT NURSERY & LANDSCAPING TREES (4) 904.00
08/14/2014 GEN 39392 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/9-8/15/14 E4125 ELMS RD 27.33
08/14/2014 GEN 39393 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/9-8/5/14 A 4125 ELMS RD PAVILION 25.47
08/14/2014 GEN 39394 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/4-8/1/14 E 5121 MORRISH RD 284.03

City Council Packet 89 September 22, 2014



08/14/2014 GEN 39395 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/4-8/4/14 A 5257 WINSHALL DR 22.62
08/14/2014 GEN 39396 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/4-8/4/14 A 5361 WINSHALL DR 22.62
08/14/2014 GEN 39397 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/9-8/5/14 A 6425 MILLER RD PARK &RIDE 61.72
08/14/2014 GEN 39398 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/4-8/1/14 E 8011 MILLER RD 22.62
08/14/2014 GEN 39399 CONSUMERS ENERGY 7/3-8/1/14 A 9099 MILLER RD 22.62
08/14/2014 GEN 39400 CONSUMERS ENERGY ANNUAL PROP RENTAL/FLINT TWP 25.00
08/14/2014 GEN 39401 CUSTOM PERSONALIZED LAWN CARE CORP MOSQUITO CONTROL 3/4/14 PAJTAS AMPHITHEA 40.00
08/14/2014 GEN 39402 ETHEL SLIEFF CANCEL PAVILION RESERVATION 8/24/14 50.00

08/14/2014 GEN 39403 FLINT WELDING SUPPLY CYLINDER COMPRESSED OXYGEN 5.00
CYLINDER COMPRESSED OXYGEN 5.00
CYLINDER COMPRESSED OXYGEN 5.00

15.00

08/14/2014 GEN 39404 FROST GARDENS TREES (11) 690.00
08/14/2014 GEN 39405 GCGC GCGC MTG 9/18/14 KORTH/AGUILAR 30.00
08/14/2014 GEN 39406 GENESEE CTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER WESTERN TRUNK EXT. BOND PAYMENT 11,847.38
08/14/2014 GEN 39407 GRAND HOTEL 10/8-10/10/14 CULINSKI MI ASSOC PLANNING 646.00
08/14/2014 GEN 39408 HYDRO DESIGNS WATER CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL AND COMPL 285.00
08/14/2014 GEN 39409 JOSE A MIRELES MOW & TRIM CITY PROPERTIES 780.00
08/14/2014 GEN 39410 JUSTIN D HENRY AND EDWARD ARTIS FINAL DISPOSITION SEIZED PROPERTY 3,000.00
08/14/2014 GEN 39411 MID MICHIGAN MANUFACTURING JETTED SEWER 7469 MILLER 250.00
08/14/2014 GEN 39412 MY-CAN LLC PORTAJON RENTAL 7/20-8/17/14 140.00
08/14/2014 GEN 39413 RWS OF MID MICHIGAN FY15 GARBAGE/RECYCLING/YARD WASTE JULY 2 21,792.68

08/14/2014 GEN 39414 SCHAEFER'S OFFICE SOURCE OFFICE SUPPLIES 219.99
RETURN TONER (2)/POLICE (79.98)

140.01

08/14/2014 GEN 39415 SELF SERVE LUMBER CO. WHT/BRN ALUM COIL 69.99

08/14/2014 GEN 39416 STATE OF MICHIGAN-DEQ WTR DRINKING WATER LAB TESTING 64.00
DRINKING WATER LAB TESTING 64.00

128.00

08/14/2014 GEN 39417 SUPER FLITE OIL CO INC 7/1-7/31/14 FUEL USAGE - DPW 1,234.60
08/14/2014 GEN 39418 SWANK MOTION PICTURE INC. DVD DESPICABLE ME 2 MOVIE NIGHT 8/8/14 349.00
08/15/2014 GEN 39419 STERLING HEIGHTS DODGE INC 2014 DODGE CHARGER POLICE VEHICLE WITH O 21,564.00
08/21/2014 GEN 39420 AMERICAN MESSAGING AUG 2014 8108332563 8108331159 24.87

08/21/2014 GEN 39421 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 82.47
MATS, SUPPLIES 33.08

115.55

08/21/2014 GEN 39422 DARLENE FORSTNER UB REFUND FOR 5212 WINSHALL 248.00

08/21/2014 GEN 39423 DELTA DENTAL PLAN SEPT 2014 DENTAL - RETIREES (5)/EST TAX 327.02
SEPT 2014 DENTAL C. BUECHE 77.02

404.04

08/21/2014 GEN 39424 DORNBOS SIGN & SAFETY INC SIGNS (90) 1,803.08
08/21/2014 GEN 39425 FUNTASTIC INFLATABLES BOUNCE HOUSE/MOVIE NIGHT 8/22/14 150.00
08/21/2014 GEN 39426 GARNO BROTHERS HEATING & COOLING CO SERVICE AIR CONDITIONER/LIBRARY 215.00

08/21/2014 GEN 39427 GEN CTY ROAD COMMISSION POST SIGN (20) 477.40
JULY 2014 S-MTCE & OPERATIONS 381.76
MAINTENANCE I-69 WB OFF RAMP MORRISH RD 149.40

1,008.56

City Council Packet 90 September 22, 2014



08/21/2014 GEN 39428 GENESEE CTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER 6/26-7/30/14 COMM/READY TO SERVE 110,756.73
08/21/2014 GEN 39429 JOSE A MIRELES MOW & TRIM CITY LOTS 780.00
08/21/2014 GEN 39430 JUANITA AGUILAR ACT 51 TRAINING SCHEDULE/ELECTION SUPPLI 88.57

08/21/2014 GEN 39431 MICHAEL R SHUMAKER MAY-JUNE 2014 RETIREE MEDICAL HEALTH CAR 444.00
JULY-AUG 2014 RETIREE MEDICAL HEALTH CAR 444.00

888.00

08/21/2014 GEN 39432 MICHIGAN METER TECHNOLOGY GRP. INC SPACER KIT (2) 287.35
08/21/2014 GEN 39433 MICHIGAN PIPE AND VALVE VALVE BOX EXT (2)/VALVE BOX LID (2) 91.42
08/21/2014 GEN 39434 PARAGON LABORATORIES INC WATER SAMPLES 172.50

08/21/2014 GEN 39435 PITNEY BOWES INC. RENTAL CHARGES 5/20-8/20/14 70.37
RENTAL CHARGES 5/20-8/20/14 87.97

158.34

08/21/2014 GEN 39436 ROWE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CO ASSET MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 93.00
08/21/2014 GEN 39437 ROWE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CO ASSET MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 93.00
08/21/2014 GEN 39438 SIMEN FIGURA & PARKER PLC JULY 2014 GEN'L/TRAFFIC/ORDIN 3,334.50
08/21/2014 GEN 39439 SUBURBAN AUTO SUPPLY MINI LAMP 4.99
08/21/2014 GEN 39440 SUPER FLITE OIL CO INC 7/1-7/31/14 FUEL USAGE POLICE 2,225.74
08/21/2014 GEN 39441 SWARTZ CREEK AREA FIRE DEPT. JULY 2014 MONTHLY RUNS 3,163.58
08/21/2014 GEN 39442 UNUM LIFE INSURANCE SEPT 2014 RETIREE LIFE INS/SHANNON 10.35
08/21/2014 GEN 39443 BELFOR PROPERTY RESTORATION WINSHALL PARK PAVILION RECONSTRUCTION 3,598.50

08/21/2014 GEN 39444 THOMAS SVRCEK MEIJER FLOWERS - COPS IN THE PARK 42.19
ELMS PARK B-BALL HOOPS/NETS 85.82

128.01

08/28/2014 GEN 39445 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL MATS, SUPPLIES 33.08
UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 85.10

118.18

08/28/2014 GEN 39446 BADGLEY CONSTRUCTION SIDEWALK REPAIR MAINTENANCE 850.00

08/28/2014 GEN 39447 BLUMERICH COMMUNICATIONS RADIO RAPAIR (721CEY9823) 60.00
(4) RADIO BELT CLIPS 54.90

114.90

08/28/2014 GEN 39448 BRADYS BUSINESS SYSTEMS COPY MACH MAINT AGRMNT 8/15-9/14/15 70.87

08/28/2014 GEN 39449 CAPITAL TIRE (4) 225 60R16 TIRES 05-168 353.24
(2) P225 60R18 EAGLE TIRES 261.98

615.22

08/28/2014 GEN 39450 CHIEF SUPPLY CORPORATION MAG POUCH FOR DUTY BELT MCFADDEN 46.48
08/28/2014 GEN 39451 COMCAST BUSINESS 8/26-9/25/14 CITY HALL 278.75

08/28/2014 GEN 39452 CREEK AUTO SERVICES LLC LOF MONTHLY MAINT/MT & BAL 4 TIRES 05-16 98.95
LOF MT & BAL 2 TIRES/AC REPAIR 12-144 615.92
LOF/REPAIR R FRONT TIRE 13-384 46.95
LOF 09-226 34.95

796.77

08/28/2014 GEN 39453 JOSE A MIRELES MOW & TRIM CITY PROPERTIES 780.00

08/28/2014 GEN 39454 KENDALL PRINTING K-9 TIME CARDS 87.47

City Council Packet 91 September 22, 2014



DRUG FORFEITURE FORMS 353.00

440.47

08/28/2014 GEN 39455 L & M LANDSHAPING SCRAP TIRE RESURFACING 77,297.23
08/28/2014 GEN 39456 LETAVIS ENTERPRISES INC. (70) VEH WASHES APRIL & MAY 2014 472.50
08/28/2014 GEN 39457 OHM ADVISORS MILLER RD-TALLMADGE TO DYE PRG BILL #5 5,599.09
08/28/2014 GEN 39458 OHM ADVISORS MILLER MORRISH TO ELMS PROG BILL #5 1,269.78
08/28/2014 GEN 39459 PRINTING SYSTEMS STORG CONT/BLLT BAG/BLLT CONT/AV POLL BO 23.45
08/28/2014 GEN 39460 ROWE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CO SITE PLAN REVIEW O'REILLY AUTO 186.00
08/28/2014 GEN 39461 ROWE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CO ASSET MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 3,348.25
08/28/2014 GEN 39462 RWS OF MID MICHIGAN FY15 GARBAGE/RECYCLING/YARD WASTE 21,792.68

08/28/2014 GEN 39463 SPRINGBROOK EAST CONDO ASSOC MOWING VACANT LOTS LINDSEY/RUSSELL 130.44
MOWING 7/3 & 7/31/14 VACANT LOTS LINDSEY 260.88

391.32

08/28/2014 GEN 39464 SWANK MOTION PICTURE INC. DVD PLANES MOVIE NIGHT 8/22/14 374.00
08/28/2014 GEN 39465 TRANSUNION RISK AND ALTERNATIVE RECORD CHECKS LT BADE 1.00
08/28/2014 GEN 39466 VILLAGE CLEANERS JULY 2014 UNIFORM CLEANING 110.75

GEN TOTALS:

Total of 116 Disbursements: 355,661.34

City Council Packet 92 September 22, 2014



 101-301-941    101-302-941 101-303-941

#05-168 8 0 0

#05-649 75 0 0

#12-144 162 18 0 0

#09-401 45 0 0

#10-161 97 11 0

TOTAL 987 45 0 3

0

0

0

#09-226 397 6

0

#13-384

0

00

SWARTZ CREEK POLICE DEPARTMENT
                MOTOR POOL RENTAL HOURS

AUGUST 2014

503 10

     101-304-941

City Council Packet 93 September 22, 2014



Enforcements By Category 09/12/14

BLIGHT

StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

E14-080 Closed 08/07/14 09/03/146491 BRISTOL RD

E14-084 No Violation 08/11/14 08/14/145397 MILLER RD

E14-085 Closed 08/14/14 09/03/148103 CRAPO ST

E14-088 Violation 08/14/145286 MILLER RD

E14-091 No Violation 08/19/14 08/20/147025 YARMY DR

Total  Entries: 5

BUILDING VIOLATIONS

StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

E14-086 Violation 08/14/148295 MILLER RD

E14-087 Closed 08/14/14 09/03/149181 CHESTERFIELD DR

E14-096 No Violation 08/26/14 09/03/147538 MILLER RD

Total  Entries: 3

OCCUPANCY

StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

E14-090 Complete 08/18/14 08/19/144290 MORRISH RD

Total  Entries: 1

PARKING

StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

E14-077 Closed 08/04/14 08/20/148523 CHESTERFIELD DR

E14-078 Closed 08/04/14 08/27/145111 WORCHESTER DR

Total  Entries: 2

SIGNS City Council Packet 94 September 22, 2014



Enforcements By Category 09/12/14

StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

E14-089 No Violation 08/14/14 08/20/147115 MILLER RD

Total  Entries: 1

WATER DISCHARGE

StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

E14-094 Violation 08/25/14 08/27/145126 MORRISH RD

Total  Entries: 1

WEED COMPLAINT

StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

E14-079 Inspection Pending 08/05/145015 HOLLAND DR

E14-081 Inspection Pending 08/08/14 08/08/144301 ELMS RD

E14-082 Inspection Pending 08/11/145256 DON SHENK DR

E14-083 Inspection Pending 08/11/145397 MILLER RD

E14-093 Violation 08/22/145126 MORRISH RD

E14-095 Violation 08/26/146491 BRISTOL RD

Total  Entries: 6

All RecordsPopulation:Total Records: 19
Enforcement.DateFiled  Between  8/1/2014 12:00:00 AM AND 8/31/2014 12:00:00 AM

City Council Packet 95 September 22, 2014



Parcel Number Inspection TypeAddress Scheduled

Inspection List 09/12/14

InspectorCompleted Result

Marty Johnson08/04/2014 08/04/2014 Approved7127 ABBEY LN Post Hole58-36-526-045

Bob Davis08/05/2014 08/05/2014 Approved7070 MILLER RD A Final58-36-576-012

Marty Johnson08/05/2014 08/05/2014 Canceled7070 MILLER RD A Final58-36-576-012

Tara Ford08/05/2014 08/05/2014 Violation(s)8523 CHESTERFIELD DR Letter58-03-526-001

Leon Buning08/05/2014 08/04/2014 Approved5207 GREENLEAF DR Final58-03-533-082

Bob Davis08/05/2014 08/05/2014 Approved5207 GREENLEAF DR Final58-03-533-082

Tara Ford08/05/2014 08/05/2014 Violation(s)5111 WORCHESTER DR Letter58-02-501-092

Tara Ford08/05/2014 08/05/2014 Violation(s)3374 ELMS RD Letter58-25-576-019

Tara Ford08/05/2014 08/05/2014 Violation(s)5086 FAIRCHILD ST Letter58-02-526-082

Tara Ford08/05/2014 08/05/2014 Violation(s)5090 FAIRCHILD ST Letter58-02-526-081

Tara Ford08/05/2014 08/05/2014 Violation(s)5020 FORD ST Letter58-02-528-009

Tara Ford08/05/2014 08/05/2014 Violation(s)5123 MORRISH RD Letter58-01-100-021

Tara Ford08/05/2014 08/05/2014 Violation(s)5370 MILLER RD Letter58-29-551-012

Tom Svrcek08/05/20145015 HOLLAND DR Code58-01-100-035

Tara Ford08/05/2014 08/05/2014 Violation(s)5184 BIRCHCREST DR Letter58-03-531-120

Marty Johnson08/06/2014 08/04/2014 Partially Complied5207 GREENLEAF DR Status58-03-533-082

Marty Johnson08/06/2014 08/20/2014 No Change5375 SEYMOUR RD Citation58-03-533-031

Marty Johnson08/06/2014 08/20/2014 No Change5235 WORCHESTER DR Citation58-02-502-034

Marty Johnson08/06/20145157 MORRISH RD Direction58-01-100-013

Leon Buning08/06/2014 08/06/2014 Approved7151 PARK RIDGE PKWY Final58-36-529-017

Leon Buning08/07/20145927 CROSSCREEK DR Final58-36-651-209

Leon Buning08/07/2014 08/07/2014 Approved4375 MAYA LN Final58-36-676-037

Leon Buning08/07/2014 08/07/2014 Approved8253 MILLER RD Final & Service58-02-526-062

Marty Johnson08/07/2014 08/14/2014 Violation(s)6491 BRISTOL RD Ordinance58-31-501-009

Tom Svrcek08/08/20144301 ELMS RD Site Inspection58-31-551-006

Tom Svrcek08/11/20145256 DON SHENK DR Site Inspection58-02-503-004

Tom Svrcek08/11/20145397 MILLER RD Site Inspection58-32-100-005City Council Packet 96 September 22, 2014



Parcel Number Inspection TypeAddress Scheduled

Inspection List 09/12/14

InspectorCompleted Result

Marty Johnson08/12/2014 08/05/2014 Complied5207 GREENLEAF DR Status58-03-533-082

Bob Davis08/12/2014 08/12/2014 Approved7085 BRISTOL RD Final58-36-526-062

Bob Davis08/12/2014 08/12/2014 Approved7370 CROSSCREEK DR Final58-36-651-228

Leon Buning08/12/2014 08/12/2014 Approved6060 BRISTOL RD Rough-UAW & Final-Medical/Secu58-29-300-007

Bob Davis08/12/2014 08/12/2014 Approved7230 LINDSEY DR Swr Tap In58-36-676-057

Marty Johnson08/13/2014 08/14/2014 No Change5472 MILLER RD Status58-29-551-002

Marty Johnson08/13/2014 08/14/2014 Complied5242 SEYMOUR RD Status58-03-531-067

Marty Johnson08/13/2014 08/14/2014 Complied4010 JENNIE LN Status58-36-526-001

Marty Johnson08/13/2014 08/14/2014 No Violation5397 MILLER RD Site Inspection58-32-100-005

Bob Davis08/14/2014 08/14/2014 Approved7410 CROSSCREEK DR Final58-36-651-155

Marty Johnson08/14/2014 08/14/2014 Approved7449 COUNTRY MEADOW DR Final58-36-651-050

Marty Johnson08/14/2014 08/14/2014 Violation(s)5286 MILLER RD Code58-29-551-020

Marty Johnson08/18/2014 08/18/2014 Approved7070 MILLER RD A Final58-36-576-012

Tara Ford08/18/2014 08/18/2014 Violation(s)6491 BRISTOL RD Letter58-31-501-009

Bob Davis08/19/2014 08/19/2014 Approved4375 MAYA LN Final & Gas Pressure Test58-36-676-037

Marty Johnson08/19/2014 08/19/2014 Approved9290 JILL MARIE LN Final Zoning58-03-534-043

Marty Johnson08/19/2014 08/19/2014 Complied4290 MORRISH RD Site Inspection58-35-400-001

Marty Johnson08/20/2014 08/20/2014 No Change8298 MILLER RD Status58-35-300-019

Marty Johnson08/20/2014 08/20/2014 Complied3374 ELMS RD Citation58-25-576-019

Marty Johnson08/20/2014 08/20/2014 No Change5086 FAIRCHILD ST Citation58-02-526-082

Marty Johnson08/20/2014 08/20/2014 No Change5090 FAIRCHILD ST Citation58-02-526-081

Marty Johnson08/20/2014 08/20/2014 No Change5020 FORD ST Citation58-02-528-009

Marty Johnson08/20/2014 08/20/2014 Complied5123 MORRISH RD Citation58-01-100-021

Marty Johnson08/20/2014 08/20/2014 No Change5370 MILLER RD Citation58-29-551-012

Marty Johnson08/20/2014 08/20/2014 No Change5184 BIRCHCREST DR Status58-03-531-120

Marty Johnson08/20/2014 08/20/2014 Complied8523 CHESTERFIELD DR Status58-03-526-001

Marty Johnson08/20/2014 08/20/2014 Violation(s)8295 MILLER RD Code58-02-526-092City Council Packet 97 September 22, 2014



Parcel Number Inspection TypeAddress Scheduled

Inspection List 09/12/14

InspectorCompleted Result

Marty Johnson08/20/2014 08/20/2014 Violation(s)9181 CHESTERFIELD DR Code58-03-531-154

Marty Johnson08/20/2014 08/20/2014 No Violation7115 MILLER RD Code58-36-577-018

Marty Johnson08/20/2014 08/20/2014 No Violation7025 YARMY DR Ordinance58-36-526-023

Tara Ford08/20/2014 08/20/2014 Violation(s)7139 MILLER RD Letter58-36-577-019

Marty Johnson08/20/2014 08/20/2014 Violation(s)8103 CRAPO ST Code58-02-530-042

Leon Buning08/21/2014 08/21/2014 Approved9155 OAKVIEW DR Final58-03-533-016

Bob Davis08/21/2014 08/21/2014 Approved9155 OAKVIEW DR Final58-03-533-016

Tara Ford08/21/2014 08/21/2014 Violation(s)8298 MILLER RD Letter58-35-300-019

Marty Johnson08/21/2014 08/21/2014 Violation(s)5286 MILLER RD Letter58-29-551-020

Tara Ford08/21/2014 08/21/2014 Violation(s)9181 CHESTERFIELD DR Letter58-03-531-154

Tara Ford08/21/2014 08/21/2014 Violation(s)8103 CRAPO ST Letter58-02-530-042

Tara Ford08/21/2014 08/21/2014 Violation(s)8295 MILLER RD Letter58-02-526-092

Marty Johnson08/22/20145126 MORRISH RD Site Inspection58-02-200-019

Bob Davis08/23/2014 08/23/2014 Approved4375 MAYA LN Final58-36-676-037

Marty Johnson08/25/2014 08/25/2014 Approved7442 GROVE ST Final58-01-502-108

Marty Johnson08/25/2014 08/25/2014 Approved4177 MOUNTAIN ASH LN Final58-36-529-020

Marty Johnson08/25/2014 08/25/2014 Partially Approved4375 MAYA LN Final58-36-676-037

Leon Buning08/25/2014 08/25/2014 Approved5441 SEYMOUR RD Final58-03-533-199

Leon Buning08/25/2014 08/25/2014 Approved8006 MILLER RD Final58-35-576-048

Leon Buning08/26/2014 08/26/2014 Approved7257 MILLER RD Final58-36-577-031

Bob Davis08/26/2014 08/26/2014 Approved7257 MILLER RD Final58-36-577-031

Marty Johnson08/26/2014 08/26/2014 Approved6060 BRISTOL RD Partial Final & Partial Rough58-29-300-007

Tom Svrcek08/26/20146491 BRISTOL RD Site Inspection58-31-501-009

Marty Johnson08/27/2014 08/27/2014 No Change4264 MORRISH RD Status58-35-576-021

Marty Johnson08/27/2014 08/27/2014 Complied5126 MORRISH RD Status58-02-200-019

Marty Johnson08/27/2014 08/27/2014 Complied5111 WORCHESTER DR Status58-02-501-092

Marty Johnson08/27/2014 08/27/2014 No Change7139 MILLER RD Status58-36-577-019City Council Packet 98 September 22, 2014



Parcel Number Inspection TypeAddress Scheduled

Inspection List 09/12/14

InspectorCompleted Result

Marty Johnson08/27/2014 08/27/2014 Violation(s)5126 MORRISH RD Code58-02-200-019

Marty Johnson08/27/2014 08/27/2014 Canceled7538 MILLER RD Ordinance58-36-300-021

Bob Davis08/28/2014 08/28/2014 Approved5927 CROSSCREEK DR Final58-36-651-209

Marty Johnson08/28/2014 08/28/2014 Approved5232 MORRISH RD Post Hole58-02-200-033

Population:Inspections: 85

City Council Packet 99 September 22, 2014



City of Swartz Creek09/12/14

Building Permit List
2014

Permit No. Date Applicant Phone Tax ID No. Value of Const/Permit Fee Location Type of Construction

Building

PB1400042 08/19/14 58-35-751-001 $15,000 $170.00 8100 CIVIC DR 48473 Com Add/Alter/Repair 0T-MOBILE CENTRAL LLC

PB1400043 08/22/14 (810) 635 2227 58-02-200-033 $31,185 $255.00 5232 MORRISH RD 48473-7611Com Utility Building 0WOODSIDE BUILDERS, INC

PB1400044 08/22/14 58-35-776-090 $1,440 $105.00 90 HAMILTON ST 48473-1177Res Deck 0BEEBE, SUSAN OR CURRENT RESIDENT

PB1400045 08/26/14 (248) 581 3030 58-02-551-005 $3,638 $115.00 5278 WORCHESTER DR48473-1160Window Replacement 0Hanson's Window & Construction Inc

Total: 4 Permits Value: $51,263 Fee Total: $645.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Electrical

PE1400041 08/01/14 (810) 487 0000 58-35-576-039 $0 $110.00 8048 MILLER RD 48473-1340Electrical 0Signs By Crannie

PE1400042 08/01/14 (734) 722 0037 58-03-531-159 $0 $136.00 9233 CHESTERFIELD DR48473-1007Electrical 0Bratcher Electric Inc

PE1400043 08/01/14 (810) 407 7205 58-36-651-209 $0 $106.00 5927 CROSSCREEK DR48473-1713Electrical 0PHASE LOGIC INC

PE1400044 08/04/14 58-03-533-082 $0 $120.00 5207 GREENLEAF DR 48473-1133Electrical 0JOHNSON, JASON

PE1400045 08/05/14 (810) 691 2684 58-03-533-199 $0 $216.00 5441 SEYMOUR RD 48473-1051Electrical 0Cougar Electric LLC

PE1400046 08/06/14 (810) 213 6727 58-03-533-016 $0 $122.00 9155 OAKVIEW DR 48473-1152Electrical 0DM Burr Mechanical

PE1400047 08/11/14 (248) 623 4900 58-03-528-026 $0 $106.00 9118 CHELMSFORD DR48473 Electrical 0Oak Electric Service

PE1400048 08/11/14 (810) 691 2684 58-35-576-048 $0 $115.00 8006 MILLER RD 48473-1341Electrical 0Cougar Electric LLC

Total: 8 Permits Value: $0 Fee Total: $1,031.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Mechanical

PM140062 08/06/14 (810) 213 6727 58-03-533-016 $0 $160.00 9155 OAKVIEW DR 48473-1152Mechanical 0DM Burr Mechanical

PM140063 08/11/14 (248) 623 4900 58-03-528-026 $0 $105.00 9118 CHELMSFORD DR48473 Mechanical 0Gary Pipia

PM140064 08/14/14 (810) 232 8270 58-36-526-022 $0 $175.00 4194 JENNIE LN 48473-1549Mechanical 0Terry Allen Plbg & Htg CoCity Council Packet 100 September 22, 2014



City of Swartz Creek09/12/14

Building Permit List
2014

Permit No. Date Applicant Phone Tax ID No. Value of Const/Permit Fee Location Type of Construction

PM140065 08/20/14 (810) 232 8270 58-36-530-016 $0 $130.00 7216 PARK RIDGE PKWY48473-1583Mechanical 0Terry Allen Plbg & Htg Co

PM140066 08/26/14 (616) 245 8719 58-32-100-004 $0 $195.00 5499 MILLER RD 48473-1512Mechanical 0Vanguard Fire & Security Systems

PM140067 08/26/14 (810) 232 8270 58-29-551-010 $0 $135.00 5404 MILLER RD 48473-1513Mechanical 0Terry Allen Plbg & Htg Co

Total: 6 Permits Value: $0 Fee Total: $900.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Plumbing

PP140016 08/04/14 58-03-533-082 $0 $105.00 5207 GREENLEAF DR 48473-1133Plumbing 0JOHNSON, JASON

PP140017 08/26/14 ()  58-02-504-001 $0 $105.00 8301 MILLER RD 48473-1246Plumbing 0RC Plumbing LLC

Total: 2 Permits Value: $0 Fee Total: $210.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Zoning

PZ14-0016 08/01/14 (810) 487 0000 58-35-576-039 $0 $120.00 8048 MILLER RD 48473-1340Sign 0Signs By Crannie

PZ14-0017 08/26/14 58-02-501-022 $3,673 $25.00 5160 OAKVIEW DR 48473-1252Shed 0GRIMES, DARWIN & PATRICIA

Total: 2 Permits Value: $3,673 Fee Total: $145.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Fee Total:Permit Total: 22 Value: $2,931.00$54,936

City Council Packet 101 September 22, 2014



City of Swartz Creek09/12/14

Building Permit List
2014

Permit No. Date Applicant Phone Tax ID No. Value of Const/Permit Fee Location Type of Construction

Permit.DateIssued  Between  8/1/2014 12:00:00
AM AND 8/31/2014 12:00:00 AM

City Council Packet 102 September 22, 2014



City of Swartz Creek 
Park Rules and Regulations 
2014 
 

CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK  
PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS 

Highlighted text was derived from existing city ordinances.  
 
AUTHORITY. These rules are approved by the city council and enforceable pursuant to 
the provisions of Section 11-51 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Swartz Creek, 
Michigan.  

APPLICABILITY. These rules apply to City of Swartz Creek parks, play fields, and other 
public grounds, hereafter called parks.  

HOURS. City parks shall be open to the public, daily, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 
10:00 p.m. and, excepting as provided in this article, it shall be unlawful to occupy or be 
present in any public park during such hours when it is not open to the public. Seasonal 
park provisions, including water, bathroom facilities, and waste collection will be offered 
May through October or as directed by the city manager. 

Exceptions to use of or presence in park after hours. 

1) Notwithstanding section 11-47, it shall not be unlawful for city employees, 
while on city business, to remain in or on public parks during such times as the 
park shall be closed to the public.  

2) It shall not be unlawful for persons other than city employees to be on or in 
park property after hours, as provided in section 11-47, provided that they have 
the prior approval and written permission of the city manager and that such 
approval shall not be granted except in pursuance of and when related to city 
business.  

CREEK ACCESS AND FLOOD STAGE WATER. Creek access is permitted in Winshall 
Park at the risk of the user. Swimming and the use of any boat, canoe, or other floatation 
device within a city park during a flood event is prohibited except by emergency 
personnel.  

SMOKING. Smoking, including (e-cig or e-cigarettes), personal vaporizers (PV) or 
electronic nicotine delivery systems (ENDS), is prohibited in the city parks.  

PROHIBITED USES AND ACTS. No person in any park owned or operated by the city 
shall:  

1) Injuring, removing property. Willfully mark, deface, disfigure, cut, injure, tamper 
with, break, displace, or remove any buildings, cables, benches, tables, 
fireplaces, grills, light poles, fountains, tennis nets, trees, playground equipment, 
public utilities or parts of appurtenances thereof, signs, notices or placards, 
whether temporary or permanent, monuments, flag poles, stakes, posts, fences 
or other boundary markers, or other structures or equipment, facilities or park 
property or appurtenances whatsoever, either real or personal.  

City Council Packet 103 September 22, 2014



2) Kindling fires. No person shall kindle or build or cause to be kindled or built a 
fire in any park except in designated places. In those areas where fires are 
permissible, such fires must be contained in a receptacle designed for the 
purpose of holding a fire and must be attended at all times. No person shall set 
fire to trash, garbage or the contents of trash receptacles at any time.  

3) Pets, animals. No person shall bring in, cause, or allow any dog, cat or other 
pets or animals which he owns or has permission to control to be brought within 
the confines of any park unless such animal be attached to a leash not to exceed 
eight feet in length; such leash is to be of sufficient strength to hold such animal 
in constant check. Disposal of animal waste is required. 

4) Hindering employees. No person shall interfere with or in any manner hinder 
any employee of the city while engaged in constructing, maintaining, repairing or 
caring for any park property.  

5) Restricted sections of park. No person shall enter upon any area of the park 
system where persons are prohibited from going, as indicated by signs, notices 
or where secured by fences and gates.  

6) Firearms, bow and arrows, fireworks and devices. No person shall discharge a 
firearm of any description while in or on park property, provided that such 
prohibition shall not apply to any peace officer while in the exercise of his official 
duties. No person shall shoot any arrow by the use of a bow, excepting in such 
areas as shall be specifically designated as areas for the use of bows and 
arrows.  

7) Peace, disorderly conduct. No person shall make or excite any disturbance or 
contention on any public grounds or park. (No person shall use any indecent or 
obscene language).  

8) Drunkenness, alcoholic liquors. No person shall enter, be in or remain on park 
property while under the influence of intoxicants or under the influence of 
unlawful drugs or controlled substances. It shall be unlawful to bring into or use 
alcoholic liquors upon park property.  

9) Drinking fountains. No person shall throw, discharge or otherwise place in the 
waters or any fountain, wash basin or toilets any substance, liquid or solid, which 
may result in water pollution or create a health hazard to the public.  

10) Sleeping in parks. No person shall sleep, whether in a vehicle, trailer, tent, 
hammock or other manner, on park property during the hours the park is closed, 
excepting in such areas as shall be specifically designated for such use. 
Furthermore, such use in such areas shall require the written approval and 
authorization of the city manager, and such approval and authorization shall 
clearly designate the time period within which such use may be made.  

11) Dumping articles in parks. No person shall deposit any rubbish, garbage or 
refuse matter, break glass or bottles in or upon any part of the park system other 
than such refuse accumulated from organized and acceptable activities within the 

PRC Approval: September 9, 2014 
City Council Approval: Pending 
 - 2 - 

City Council Packet 104 September 22, 2014



park, and such refuse must be deposited in receptacles provided for that 
purpose.  

12) Posted signs, rules and regulations. No person shall willfully disregard posted 
signs which regulate the days, hours for various activities, or any other signs 
installed, posted or attached for control, maintenance, safety or any other 
purpose within the park system.  

13) Public meetings, parades. No person, organization, club or group shall hold 
or participate in any parade, drill, exhibition, political meeting, religious meeting, 
concert, lecture or public entertainment of any kind within the park system 
without the express consent and written approval of the city manager.  

14) Advertisements. No person shall post, stencil or otherwise affix any placard, 
advertisement or notice of any kind upon or to any park property.  

15) Offering articles for sale. No person shall carry on any trade or business or 
sell or display any goods, wares or merchandise in the park system without 
permission from the city manager.  

16) Inflatable play equipment. Inflatable play equipment is prohibited unless 
arrangements are made in advance and a certificate of insurance from the party 
providing such equipment is filed with the city and includes a rider naming the 
city as an additionally insured party. 

PARK POLICE AND EMPLOYEES. No person shall resist any police officer or city 
employee exercising his duty within the park area, or fail or refuse to obey any lawful 
command of any such police officer or park employee, or in any way interfere with, 
hinder or prevent any such police officer or park employee from discharging his duty, or 
in any manner assist or give aid to any person in custody to escape or to attempt to 
escape from custody, or to rescue or attempt to rescue any person when in such 
custody.  

MOTOR VEHICLES. The operation of motor vehicles in any park is prohibited, except in 
that area laid out and appropriated as driving lanes, parking area, or for motor vehicles 
by the city. No motor vehicle shall be driven or operated on a driving lane at a speed 
greater than ten miles per hour.  

1) No person shall stop, stand or park a motor vehicle except in such areas as 
may be laid out and designated as a parking area by the city.  

2) No person shall operate a motor vehicle on any lane or service drive, whether 
posted or not, which is laid out as a means of access for maintenance employees 
to the various sections of the park system.  

3) No person shall park or store any motor vehicle during the hours the park is 
closed in any park, parking area or driving lane owned or operated by the city. 
Members of the police department are hereby authorized to remove any vehicles 
so parked or stored.  

PRC Approval: September 9, 2014 
City Council Approval: Pending 
 - 3 - 

City Council Packet 105 September 22, 2014



4) It shall be unlawful for any person, whether a pedestrian or operating a motor 
vehicle of any type, to fail to obey any such applicable traffic control sign, signal, 
lane marking or other device, whether permanent or temporary, unless otherwise 
directed by a police officer or city personnel conducting city business.  

FEES. Fees for pavilion and other facility rentals shall be set by resolution of the city 
council and shall not be waived. Monies must be paid at the time of reservation. 
Cancellations must be made two (2) weeks prior to event date and all cancellations are 
subject to a $20 fee. No refunds will be given.  

Deposits, in an amount set by resolution of the city council, shall also be collected for 
pavilion rentals. Said deposit shall be forfeited in for damage to park facilities, failure to 
properly clean facilities, or violations of park rules that are found in connection to the 
rental.  
 
PAVILION RESERVATIONS. Picnic pavilions shall be available on a first-come, first-
served basis. Reservations will be taken beginning on the first business day of each 
calendar year for city residents and thirty (30) days after the first business day of each 
calendar year for resident and non-resident applications.  

LIMITED USE FACILITY RESERVATIONS.  Any club, school, association, organization 
or recognized group desiring the use of specific areas of any park, such as picnic areas, 
athletic fields or ice rinks, shall file an application with the city manager and shall not use 
the park or area until the permit is granted.  

1) All permits shall require the permittee to clean up the park area after activity 
has terminated. All applications for permits must give the name, address and 
phone number of the permittee or the person responsible for the necessary 
policing thereof.  

2) All persons shall honor any special permits issued by the city, for certain 
areas, days and times, to clubs, organizations, teams or any other groups, 
including, but not limited to, picnic grounds, ball fields, skating rinks, stadiums, 
provided that such permit is on official forms when presented.  

3) Reservations will be given on a first come, first served basis beginning the first 
business day of each calendar year. Priority in the use of ball fields, soccer fields 
and similar athletic facilities in city parks shall be given to organizations 
scheduling regular games or matches. The city manager shall have the authority 
to designate organizations to provide for scheduling and oversight of use of 
athletic fields. Such organizations shall schedule use of the fields in a way that 
accommodates use by all interested organizations to the greatest extent feasible 
and to provide for compliance by these rules and regulations by all organizations 
using the athletic facilities.  
 
4) The city manager shall have the authority to restrict use of athletic fields to 
avoid excessive wear and tear on facilities.  
 
5) Organizations using athletic fields for scheduled games, matches and 
practices shall be responsible for removing litter from the areas used for their 

PRC Approval: September 9, 2014 
City Council Approval: Pending 
 - 4 - 

City Council Packet 106 September 22, 2014



activities. In addition, organizations shall be responsible for removing and storing 
any equipment used in their activities. Installation of bleachers or similar facilities 
must be authorized by the city manager or his/her designee.  
 
6) The city will provide refuse disposal and the maintenance of athletic fields in 
coordination with the needs and schedules of organizations using the fields. 
Organizations using athletic fields that undertake specific activities uniquely 
required for their particular use of the fields such as the installation of bases or 
nets, the painting of lines on fields, etc. require prior approval. 
 
7) Weekend reservations for facilities shall not be permitted. Playscapes, 
restrooms, play equipment are not reservable.  

 
EXPANDED PARK USE AND RESERVATIONS. Swartz Creek-based organizations 
(defined as non-profit organizations or institutions with a principle office or auxiliary 
presence within the Swartz Creek school district) may be permitted the use of 
designated areas of city parks, including control during hours the parks are closed to the 
public, subject to the following conditions:  

1) Use must be pre-approved by the city council. 
 
2) The organizations’ use of the park area shall not violate any local or state law 
nor unreasonably interfere with the use and enjoyment of adjacent park areas by 
others. 

 
3) The organizations shall hold the city harmless from liability for incidents 
arising out of the organizations’ use of the park area and shall provide evidence 
of insurance coverage. 
 
4) The city reserves the right to direct where organizations’ structures are 
installed and activities conducted to minimize damage to park property and 
facilities and to limit interference with the use of adjacent areas of the park.  

 
5) Fees shall equal the cost of all pavilion rentals for the park in use on a daily 
basis. Additional fees may be charged for services requested of the city and 
negotiated in advance, including use of barricades, additional utilities, port-a-
johns, etc. 

 
6) In no case will use result in a charge or prohibition on general access to the 
park by the public, by vehicle or other means. 

 
VENDING. Vending is permitted on a limited basis after application to the city manager 
and under the administrative rules set by the city, including a background check and 
administrative fee. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE. The public shall be deemed to have been properly notified of the 
provisions of these rules and regulations upon their publication in a newspaper of 
general circulation in the city. Signs may be posted to insure substantial compliance with 
the provisions of these rules and regulations. 

PRC Approval: September 9, 2014 
City Council Approval: Pending 
 - 5 - 

City Council Packet 107 September 22, 2014



ARTICLE III. - RULES AND REGULATIONS

Sec. 11-46.

Sec. 11-47.

Sec. 11-48.

(a)

(b)

Swartz Creek, Michigan, Code of Ordinances >> PART II - CODE OF ORDINANCES >> Chapter 11 - PARKS AND
RECREATION >> ARTICLE III. - RULES AND REGULATIONS >>

Sec. 11-46. - Definitions.
Sec. 11-47. - Park hours.
Sec. 11-48. - Exceptions to use of or presence in park after hours.
Sec. 11-49. - Prohibited uses and acts.
Sec. 11-50. - Permits required.
Sec. 11-51. - Park police and employees.
Sec. 11-52. - Motor vehicles.

- Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

Motor vehicle means any vehicle that is self-propelled, by any means whatever, including all devices
in, upon or by which any person or property may be transported or drawn, excluding only those devices
moved exclusively by human power.

Park means any area or plat of land owned or operated by any municipal or public corporation and
which is developed and used for public recreational purposes, including, but not limited to, landscaped
tracts, picnic grounds, playgrounds, athletic fields, stadiums, camps, foot and bicycle paths, motor vehicle
drives, ice rinks and other recreational structures and facilities for the use and benefit of the public.

Parking means standing a vehicle, whether occupied or not, when not loading or unloading, except
when making necessary repairs.

Parking lot means any off-street area, whether paved or not, located outside the boundary lines of
any public street or highway and used by the public for the parking of motor vehicles.

(Ord. No. 104, § 1, 5-29-73)

Cross reference— Definitions and rules of construction generally, § 1-2.

- Park hours.

City parks shall be open to the public, daily, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. and,
excepting as provided in this article, it shall be unlawful to occupy or be present in any public park during
such hours when it is not open to the public.

(Ord. No. 104, § 2, 5-29-73)

- Exceptions to use of or presence in park after hours.

Notwithstanding section 11-47, it shall not be unlawful for city employees, while on city business, to
remain in or on public parks during such times as the park shall be closed to the public.
It shall not be unlawful for persons other than city employees to be on or in park property after hours,
as provided in section 11-47, provided that they have the prior approval and written permission of the

Municode https://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=14462&HTMReque...

1 of 4 9/9/2014 9:01 AM

City Council Packet 108 September 22, 2014



Sec. 11-49.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

city manager and that such approval shall not be granted except in pursuance of and when related to
city business.

(Ord. No. 104, § 3, 5-29-73)

- Prohibited uses and acts.

No person in any park owned or operated by the city shall:

Injuring, removing property. Willfully mark, deface, disfigure, cut, injure, tamper with, break,
displace, or remove any buildings, cables, benches, tables, fireplaces, grills, light poles,
fountains, tennis nets, trees, playground equipment, public utilities or parts of appurtenances
thereof, signs, notices or placards, whether temporary or permanent, monuments, flag poles,
stakes, posts, fences or other boundary markers, or other structures or equipment, facilities or
park property or appurtenances whatsoever, either real or personal.
Kindling fires. No person shall kindle or build or cause to be kindled or built a fire in any park
except in designated places. In those areas where fires are permissible, such fires must be
contained in a receptacle designed for the purpose of holding a fire and must be attended at all
times. No person shall set fire to trash, garbage or the contents of trash receptacles at any
time.
Pets, animals. No person shall bring in, cause, or allow any dog, cat or other pets or animals
which he owns or has permission to control to be brought within the confines of any park
unless such animal be attached to a leash not to exceed eight feet in length; such leash is to
be of sufficient strength to hold such animal in constant check.
Hindering employees. No person shall interfere with or in any manner hinder any employee of
the city while engaged in constructing, maintaining, repairing or caring for any park property.
Restricted sections of park. No person shall enter upon any area of the park system where
persons are prohibited from going, as indicated by signs, notices or where secured by fences
and gates.
Firearms, bow and arrows, fireworks and devices. No person shall discharge a firearm of any
description while in or on park property, provided that such prohibition shall not apply to any
peace officer while in the exercise of his official duties. No person shall shoot any arrow by
the use of a bow, excepting in such areas as shall be specifically designated as areas for the
use of bows and arrows.
Peace, disorderly conduct. No person shall make or excite any disturbance or contention on
any public grounds or park. (No person shall use any indecent or obscene language in the
presence or hearing of any woman or child.)
Drunkenness, alcoholic liquors. No person shall enter, be in or remain on park property while
under the influence of intoxicants or under the influence of unlawful drugs or controlled
substances. It shall be unlawful to bring into or use alcoholic liquors upon park property.
Drinking fountains. No person shall throw, discharge or otherwise place in the waters or any
fountain, wash basin or toilets any substance, liquid or solid, which may result in water
pollution or create a health hazard to the public.
Sleeping in parks. No person shall sleep, whether in a vehicle, trailer, tent, hammock or other
manner, on park property during the hours the park is closed, excepting in such areas as shall
be specifically designated for such use. Furthermore, such use in such areas shall require the
written approval and authorization of the city manager, and such approval and authorization
shall clearly designate the time period within which such use may be made.
Dumping articles in parks. No person shall deposit any rubbish, garbage or refuse matter,
break glass or bottles in or upon any part of the park system other than such refuse
accumulated from organized and acceptable activities within the park, and such refuse must be
deposited in receptacles provided for that purpose.

Municode https://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=14462&HTMReque...

2 of 4 9/9/2014 9:01 AM

City Council Packet 109 September 22, 2014



(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

Sec. 11-50.

(1)

(2)

Sec. 11-51.

Sec. 11-52.

(1)

(2)

(3)

Posted signs, rules and regulations. No person shall willfully disregard posted signs which
regulate the days, hours for various activities, or any other signs installed, posted or attached
for control, maintenance, safety or any other purpose within the park system.
Public meetings, parades. No person, organization, club or group shall hold or participate in
any parade, drill, exhibition, political meeting, religious meeting, concert, lecture or public
entertainment of any kind within the park system without the express consent and written
approval of the city manager.
Advertisements. No person shall post, stencil or otherwise affix any placard, advertisement or
notice of any kind upon or to any park property.
Offering articles for sale. No person shall carry on any trade or business or sell or display any
goods, wares or merchandise in the park system without permission from the city manager.

(Ord. No. 104, § 4, 5-29-73)

State law reference— Malicious mischief, MCL 750.377 et seq.; trespassing, MCL 750.546 et seq.; firearms and weapons,
MCL 28.421 et seq., 750.222 et seq.; littering, MCL 752.901 et seq.

- Permits required.

Any club, school, association, organization or recognized group desiring the use of specific areas of
any park, such as picnic areas, athletic fields or ice rinks, shall file an application with the city manager and
shall not use the park or area until the permit is granted.

Clean-up by permittee. All permits shall require the permittee to clean up the park area after
activity has terminated. All applications for permits must give the name, address and phone
number of the permittee or the person responsible for the necessary policing thereof.
Honoring special permits. All persons shall honor any special permits issued by the city, for
certain areas, days and times, to clubs, organizations, teams or any other groups, including,
but not limited to, picnic grounds, ball fields, skating rinks, stadiums, provided that such permit
is on official forms when presented.

(Ord. No. 104, § 5, 5-29-73)

- Park police and employees.

No person shall resist any police officer or city employee exercising his duty within the park area, or
fail or refuse to obey any lawful command of any such police officer or park employee, or in any way
interfere with, hinder or prevent any such police officer or park employee from discharging his duty, or in any
manner assist or give aid to any person in custody to escape or to attempt to escape from custody, or to
rescue or attempt to rescue any person when in such custody.

(Ord. No. 104, § 6, 5-29-73)

State law reference— Obstruction of police officer, MCL 750.479.

- Motor vehicles.

The operation of motor vehicles in any park is prohibited, except in that area laid out and
appropriated as driving lanes, parking area, or for motor vehicles by the city. No motor vehicle shall be
driven or operated on a driving lane at a speed greater than ten miles per hour.

No person shall stop, stand or park a motor vehicle except in such areas as may be laid out
and designated as a parking area by the city.
No person shall operate a motor vehicle on any lane or service drive, whether posted or not,
which is laid out as a means of access for maintenance employees to the various sections of
the park system.
No person shall park or store any motor vehicle during the hours the park is closed in any

Municode https://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=14462&HTMReque...

3 of 4 9/9/2014 9:01 AM

City Council Packet 110 September 22, 2014



(4)

park, parking area or driving lane owned or operated by the city. Members of the police
department are hereby authorized to remove any vehicles so parked or stored.
It shall be unlawful for any person, whether a pedestrian or operating a motor vehicle of any
type, to fail to obey any such applicable traffic control sign, signal, lane marking or other
device, whether permanent or temporary, unless otherwise directed by a police officer or city
personnel conducting city business.

(Ord. No. 104, § 7, 5-29-73)

Cross reference— Traffic and motor vehicles generally, Ch. 18.

State law reference— Michigan Vehicle Code, MCL 257.1 et seq.

Municode https://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=14462&HTMReque...

4 of 4 9/9/2014 9:01 AM

City Council Packet 111 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 112 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 113 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 114 September 22, 2014



City Council Packet 115 September 22, 2014



August 2014 FANG Report 
 
Please see below for the FANG activity report for the month of August 2014, also note that HEMP flights 
were flown this month with MSP Aviation: 
 
FANG learned that a high ranking member of the Spanish Cobra gang was being released from prison 
and a party was planned celebrating his release.  FANG officers learned from a CI that the party was 
planned for 8/3/14.  On 8/3/14, FANG officers organized an initiative and stopped several cars leaving 
the area of the party with assistance from MSP K9-35 and MSP-Flint troopers. Two handguns, a 9mm 
Ruger and .380 Taurus were seized from two separate traffic stops.  Two suspects were arrested and 
lodged at the Flint City Jail. 
 
On 8-4-14, FANG officers received information from an informant regarding the location of a suspect 
wanted by FANG on a three count manufacture methamphetamine warrant.  Officers made contact at 
the location in the City of Flint arresting the suspect without incident.  Officers also arrested another 
subject in the residence on an outstanding probation violation warrant.  The subjects were lodged at the 
Flint City Jail. 
 
On 8-4-14, FANG officers conducted a confidential informant controlled purchase of heroin from a 
suspect in a residence in the city of Flint.  The investigation is on-going.    
   
On 8-5-14, during operation HEMP, marijuana plants were observed growing outside a residence in 
Mundy Twp. by MSP Aviation Pilots utilizing an MSP Helicopter.  FANG officers made contact at the 
residence and subsequently conducted a consent search.  Officers located and seized 50 lbs. of 
processed marijuana from the residence.  The investigation is continuing. 
 
On 8-5-14, FANG officers responded to a request from Flint City Fire reference possible 
methamphetamine components found in a bag that was reported to be smoking.  The discarded bag 
was found to contain methamphetamine components.  Officers packaged and transported the 
components to the clandestine lab storage shed in Bridgeport per MSP policy.  Items from the bag were 
seized and sent to the MSP lab for fingerprint analysis.  The investigation is on-going. 
 
On 8-5-14, during operation HEMP, marijuana plants were observed by the MSP helicopter growing in 
the freeway gore at I-75 and Dort Hwy.  Officers seized 4 marijuana plants.  There are no suspects. 
 
On 8-5-14, during operation HEMP, marijuana plants were observed by the by MSP Aviation Pilots 
utilizing an MSP Helicopter growing at the corner of a residential property line.  Officers seized 3 
marijuana plants.  Officers interviewed subjects in the area with no suspects being developed.  
 
On 8-6-14, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of marijuana from a suspect in a residence in 
the city of Flint.   As a result of this buy officers obtained and executed a search warrant at the residence 
on 8-7-14.  Officers seized approximately 17 grams of marijuana, 1 gram of heroin, and prescription 
narcotics consisting of Xanax, morphine and vicodin.  The suspect was lodged at the Flint City Jail.  
 
On 8-6-14, FANG officers conducted a confidential informant controlled purchase of crack cocaine from 
a suspect in a residence in the city of Flint.  As a result of this controlled purchase offices obtained and 
executed a search warrant at the residence on this same date.  Officers seized 5 grams of marijuana, 2 

City Council Packet 116 September 22, 2014



grams of cocaine, 1 gram of crack and a pump shot gun.  Forfeiture proceedings were initiated on 
$1153.00.  The suspect is a convicted a felon and on circuit court probation.  The suspect was arrested 
and lodged at the Genesee County Jail.  The case is being reviewed by the AUSA regarding federal 
prosecution. 
 
On 8-8-14, FANG officers conducted surveillance at a hotel in Flint Twp. after receiving information from 
an informant that a subject wanted by FANG on felony warrants was selling illegal narcotics from a room 
at the hotel.  Officers observed the wanted suspect exit and then re-enter the room.  Officers made 
entry into the room finding the suspect standing over as scale weighing up 21 grams of crack 
cocaine.  Officers initiated forfeiture proceedings on $1249.00.  The suspect was arrested and lodged at 
the Genesee County Jail.     
 
FANG officers had been in contact with a suspect via Craig’s List reference marijuana for sale.  On 8-8-14 
an undercover officer purchased 1 pound of marijuana from the suspect at an agreed upon location in 
Flint Twp.  A consent search of the suspect’s residence in the city of Flint did not result in any further 
seizures.  The investigation is on-going.  
 
On 8-11-14, FANG officers conducted a confidential informant controlled purchase of heroin from a 
suspect in a residence in the city of Flint.  The investigation is on-going. 
 
On 8-11-14, FANG officers conducted a confidential informant controlled purchase of heroin from 
suspect in the city of Flint.  The investigation is on-going.  This is a separate incident from the above 
listed heroin purchase. 
 
On 8-12-14, FANG officers executed a search warrant at a residence located in the City of Flint.  The 
known drug dealer at the home is a convicted felon.  Officers seized approximately .8 grams of heroin, a 
small amount of marijuana, (1) handgun and forfeiture was initiated on $3459.00.  The male was lodged 
in the Genesee County Jail.  The case is being reviewed by the AUSA regarding federal prosecution. 
 
On 8-12-14, FANG officers conducted surveillance on a known drug house in the City of Burton.  A 
vehicle transporting three subjects left the home.  Officers surveyed the subjects to two (2) known drug 
houses in the City of Flint where they stopped for a short time at each house.  A marked unit made 
traffic stop on the vehicle and FANG officers approached.  Officers seized approximately 6 grams of 
heroin, 2 grams of crack and one handgun.  Two of the males were lodged in the Flint City lock up and 
one was released pending further investigation. 
 
On 8-14-14, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of “crack” cocaine from a suspected drug 
dealer.  Officers used a Confidential Informant (CI) to purchase the “crack” from a male at a house in the 
City of Flint.  Intelligence was gathered after the purchase, and the investigation is still ongoing. 
 
On 8-15-14, FANG officers were conducting surveillance on a house in the City of Flint in attempt to 
locate a Parole Absconder.  The Absconder was also believed to be responsible for several residential 
Home Invasions in the county.  Officers observed the male enter a vehicle and leave the residence.  The 
vehicle was surveyed until a marked unit was able to make a traffic stop on the vehicle.  The male was 
arrested and lodged in the Genesee County Jail for the Parole Absconder charge. 
 

City Council Packet 117 September 22, 2014



On 8-18-14, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of marijuana from a suspected drug 
dealer.  Officers used a Confidential Informant (CI) to purchase the marijuana from a male at a house in 
the City of Flint.  Intelligence was gathered after the purchase, and the investigation is still ongoing.  
 
On 8-20-14, FANG officers executed a search warrant at a house on the east side of Flint.  A small 
amount of cocaine and marijuana were seized from the home.  A male was arrested for the narcotics 
and lodged in the Genesee County Jail.  A female at the home was arrested and lodged on local 
outstanding warrants. 
 
On 8-20-14, FANG officers executed a search warrant at a house in the City of Flint.  The known drug 
dealer at the home is a convicted felon.  Officers seized approximately 1.8 grams of heroin, 2 handguns 
and forfeiture was initiated on $631.00.  The male was lodged in the Genesee County Jail.  The case is 
being reviewed by the AUSA regarding federal prosecution. 
 
On 8-20-14, FANG officers conducted an Undercover Officer (UC) buy/bust at a City of Flint business 
parking lot.  The UC contacted a Marijuana dealer through the internet on Craigslist.  The UC set up a 
purchase of (18) clone Marijuana plants.  The male suspect arrived and the purchase was made.  He was 
arrested and later released PFI.  The investigation is still ongoing.  This tip was passed on to FANG from 
the Flint Post. 
 
On 8-20-14, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of heroin from a suspected drug 
dealer.  Officers used a Confidential Informant (CI) to purchase the heroin from a male at a house in the 
City of Flint.  Intelligence was gathered after the purchase, and the investigation is still ongoing. 
 
On 8-21-14, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of “crack” cocaine from a suspected drug 
dealer.  Officers used a Confidential Informant (CI) to purchase the crack from a male on foot at the 
downtown Flint MTA bus station.  Intelligence was gathered after the purchase, and the investigation is 
still ongoing. 
 
On 8-22-14, FANG officers executed a search warrant at a residence in the City of Flint.  The known drug 
dealer that resides at the home is currently on parole.  A small amount of heroin was seized along with 
packaging material.  Forfeiture was initiated for $135.00.  The male was lodged in the Genesee County 
Jail. 
 
On 8-25-14, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of “crack” cocaine from a suspected drug 
dealer.  Officers used a Confidential Informant (CI) to purchase the crack from a male at a house in the 
City of Flint.  Intelligence was gathered after the purchase, and the investigation is still ongoing. 
 
On 8-26-14, FANG officers assisted MAGNET by arresting two fugitives on Felony Warrants in the City of 
Flint.  Both were lodged at the McCree district court building. 
 
On 8-27-14, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of “crack” cocaine from a suspected drug 
dealer.  Officers used a Confidential Informant (CI) to purchase the crack from a male using a bicycle to 
deliver narcotics in a Flint neighborhood.  Intelligence was gathered after the purchase, and the 
investigation is still ongoing. 
 

City Council Packet 118 September 22, 2014



On 8-28-14, FANG officers were conducting surveillance on a suspected drug house in the City of Flint.  A 
traffic stop was conducted on a vehicle leaving the home.  Approximately .5 grams of cocaine was seized 
from the driver.  The driver was arrested and the investigation is still ongoing. 
 
On 8-29-14, FANG officers conducted a search warrant in the City of Flint.  No property was seized from 
the home and no arrest was made. 
 
Thanks to all of you for your continued support, if anyone has any questions or concerns, please do not 
hesitate to contact me. 
 
Pat   
 
D/F/Lt. Patrick Richard 
Section Commander-Flint Area Narcotics Group 
Third District Headquarters                                
Michigan State Police 
Mailing Address: 
F.A.N.G.                             
PO Box 614 
Grand Blanc, Mi 48480                          
Office:  810-233-3689 
Cell:  616-260-8583 
FAX:  810-233-7119  
richardp@michigan.gov                             
  
“A PROUD tradition of SERVICE through EXCELLENCE, INTEGRITY, and COURTESY 
 
 

City Council Packet 119 September 22, 2014

mailto:richardp@michigan.gov

	2014-9-8 Sept-8 Council Minutes
	Binder1
	2014-09-22, Council Mtg Template
	TO:  Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members
	OLD / ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS

	Water Rate Increase
	Sewer Rate Increase
	Prop purchase request
	Outlot Map
	Miller Prop Card
	Miller Outlot Letter 2014-Ellison
	Miller Lot Offer
	MDOT Contract
	August DPS Reports
	Check Register
	CheckRegister

	Copy of Vehicle Rental Rpt July 2014
	Sheet1

	Enforcements Aug 14
	Inspections Aug 14
	Permit List Aug 14
	ParksRules2014
	Ord
	Rowe grant proposal
	FANG Report




